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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Perception Digital Holdings Limited
(“Perception Digital” or “the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively “the Group”), | am pleased to present the Group’s
final results for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The year 2014 has been a year of strategic transformation
for the Group. During the year, the Company has completed
the reorganization of the Board, introduced a brand new
management outlook and clearly set the development direction
and operation strategy for the future. To further broaden our
income sources and stabilize our development, the Group
is undergoing business restructuring, redistributing and
integrating resources in areas such as trading and electronic
technology, and is implementing a diversified business
development strategy, which includes entering the booming
car rental industry in China.

Today, the car rental industry in China in still in an early
stage of development and has not reached an industrial
scale, and thus offers great potential for growth. Meanwhile,
favourable factors such as the current reform in vehicle use
by government officials and the enterprises’ shifting to asset
light model are creating a positive development prospect for
the industry. According to the independent industry consultant
Roland Berger’s statistics, the car rental industry in China has
grown, in terms of income, at a CAGR of 29% from RMB9
billion in 2008 to RMB34 billion in 2013. The number of fleet
vehicles has increased at a CAGR of 30% from 100,000 in
2008 to 369,000 in 2013. The market expects that China’s car
rental industry will have outstanding growth potential, with its
market size at approximately RMB65 billion and the number of
fleet vehicles reaching 779,000 by 2018.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

In July 2014, the National Development and Reform
Commission issued the “Directives on the Full-fledged Reform
on the Use of Official Vehicles” ([ B & M #t # A 15 B &= 4
BN EMIEEE R |)and the “Central and State Government
Official Vehicles Reform Program” ([ R FE R A7 A&
HIEREHZ]), which outlined the key points of the reform
including the cancellation of the use of official vehicles, the
use of public transport for general working trips and the
distribution of transportation allowance. Apart from these
measures, with the Central Government’s vigorous promotion
of the anti-corruption campaign, the centralized procurements
in government departments is becoming more transparent
thus we are more optimistic about the prospects for growth
of the car rental market. Benefitting from the government’s
reform program, along with the increase in the use of vehicles
in business, companies providing long-term car rental
services should enjoy a lot of room for expansion in scale and
improvement in efficiency.

During the year, the Group has entered into a subscription
agreement with Prime Elite Ventures Limited (“Prime Elite”)
in relation to the subscription of approximately 10% of Prime
Elite’'s shares for US$5 million (approximately HK$39 million).
Prime Elite’s “AAFEE ", established in 2013, is a mobile internet-
based intelligent car rental platform which is committed to
providing a new form of transportation to people and enterprises
by providing professional car rental service of different types
including readily available vehicles, bookings by appointments
and vehicles for business use. With its headquarter in Beijing,
AA FHE’s service network covers many cities including Beijing,
Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Shanghai, Dalian and Shijiazhuang.
Subsequently, in November 2014, the Group acquired Gigantic
Wisdom Limited (“Gigantic”) at a total consideration of RMB65
million (approximately HK$81 million). Gigantic owns 1t & i&
ZAREHRERREE QA (“Beijing Tu An”), a Beijing-based
company which provides long term car rental services through
offering a wide selection of vehicles of different types, brands
and classes to suit the needs of different customers. During the
year, the Group has taken a solid step forward in establishing
its car rental business, laying a good foundation for future
development.
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Looking ahead to the future, the Group will continue to
adhere to its philosophy of “Capitalizing on Complementary
Advantages and Resources, Sharing Information, Creating
Synergies and Integration of Resources”, by improving
and restructuring its existing high-quality assets, and will
actively expand its car rental business through investment
in and acquisition of high quality assets in the industry
and development of online car rental business. The Group
is committed to becoming an industry pioneer by rapidly
developing its core advantages among its competitors
as a first-mover, and bringing substantial returns to the
shareholders.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our staff, the
shareholders and other stakeholders for their continued
support to the Group. The Group resolves to strive its utmost
to enhance shareholders’ value.

Ms. Deng Shufen
Chairman and Executive Director

20 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWR O

Industry Overview

To improve the worsening situations of traffic congestion
and air pollution in Mainland China, a number of major cities
(including Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Tianjin, Hangzhou,
Guiyang and Shenzhen) have already implemented restrictive
measures on the issuance of license plates to new vehicles,
transfer of existing license plates between owners of different
vehicles, and entry to cities by vehicles without local license
plates. It is expected other major cities will also implement
similar restrictions in the near future. With such restrictions,
the costs of owning vehicles for transportation are rapidly
rising. Alternately, renting cars not only offers the freedom of
travelling from province to province, removes the risk of low
residual values for privately owned cars and frees the drivers
from the required arrangements for insurance and service
maintenance, but also provides the flexibility of changing
car models at any time as well as the ease in costs control.
Car rental is gradually becoming popular and preferred by
businesses and individuals, resulting in the rapid development
of the car rental industry in Mainland China, which has
emerged as a sunshine industry. Currently, the operation mode
of car rental business in Mainland China encompasses mainly
long-term leases, short-term rentals and car rentals over the
platform. Long-term leases in general refer to businesses with
rental periods longer than 90 days. The service mode can be
further differentiated into self-drive or with provision of driver
service. With the rigorous fight against corruption campaign
going on in Mainland China and the promotion of asset-light
strategy among enterprises, the business of long-term rental is
rapidly growing with customers coming from government and
business sectors. In general, short-term self-drive rentals are
those with rental periods shorter than 90 days, the obvious
choice for tourists whose travel frequency is rising dramatically.
As for the internet car rental platform, it primarily provides an
online terminal platform for car rental services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Today, the car rental industry in Mainland China is at its initial
stage of development. From an industry perspective, the
development and extent of penetration of the car rental market
in Mainland China is still far below that of other countries. In
2013, the top five car rental companies accounted for about
14% of the overall PRC market, whereas, the percentages
of the top five companies in the USA, Germany and Brazil
were 95%, 91% and 58% respectively. With respect to the
composition of the industry, there are tens of thousands of car
rental companies, but the market is extremely fragmented with
the average number of cars per company fleet of less than 50.
This indicates that the room for the industry’s development
and growth is very promising. According to the independent
industry consultant Roland Berger, the size of Mainland
China’s car rental market grew significantly from approximately
RMB9 billion in 2008 to approximately RMB34 billion in 2013,
at a compound annual growth rate reaching 29%. Whereas,
the total fleet of vehicles increased from approximately
100,000 in 2008 to approximately 369,000 in 2013, with a
compound annual growth rate at a similar level of 30%.

The favorable policies introduced by the Central Government
also contributed to the rapid growth of the industry. According
to the “Notice on Promoting the Healthy Development of the
Car Rental Industry” (AR TEHEXREERNB M)
issued in 2011, the Ministry of Transport would strengthen the
control on the car rental industry so as to ensure a normal
and healthy development. This policy can be interpreted as
an indication that the Government will escalate support to
the industry. Meanwhile, a series of car reform programs
including the “Directives on the Full-fledged Reform in the
Use of Official Vehicles” (BAM 2 H # i N1 A E G E R E
#5#E & R )and the “Central and State Government Official
Vehicles Reform Program” (7 92 0 B 5% # B8 2 7 B &8 & [E 2
7728 ) were released during the year by the Development and
Reform Commission. These actions together with factors such
as measures to reduce traffic congestions and promotion
of asset-light strategies, should provide an impetus to the
growth of Mainland China’s car rental industry. Whether it is
from the industry perspective in relation to China’s economic
trends or from the micro point of view of social foundation,
the development of Mainland China’s car rental industry has a
bright future.
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Management Discussion
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Business Review
Car rental business

In an effort to capture market opportunities, the Group has
carried out strategic restructuring during the year, looked
for the most appropriate segments for development and
successfully entered the car rental market. On 15 October
2014, the Group entered into a subscription agreement to
invest in the internet car rental service business through the
subscription of approximately 10% of equity interests in Prime
Elite for US$5 million (approximately HK$39 million). “AATHE 7,
an online car rental application of Prime Elite, was launched
in 2013, is a nation-wide, mobile internet-based intelligent car
rental platform, providing users with a brand new, personalised
travel service which includes professional car rental service of
readily available vehicles, including booking by appointment
and vehicles for business use. With its headquarter in
Beijing, “AAFHE " service network covers a number of cities
in the country, including Beijing, Guangzhou, Shenzhen,
Shanghai, Dalian and Shijiazhuang. Through the integration of
services provided by car rental companies and driver service
companies, a comprehensive, seamless personal travel service
is provided to customers. The Group is optimistic about the
development of internet car rental service. The subscription
in Prime Elite’s equity interests indicates the Group’s
determination to enter the industry and its commitment to
extending the car rental network to cover the whole country.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 28 November 2014, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to acquire 100% equity interest
in Gigantic for a total consideration of RMB65 million
(approximately HK$81 million). Gigantic owns Beijing Tu An,
which is engaged in the car rental services business. With its
headquarter in Beijing, Beijing Tu An provides mainly long-term
car rental service and has established a sound operation with
an extensive business network. Quality car rental service is
provided by Beijing Tu An offering a wide selection of different
types, brands and classes of vehicles to suit the diverse needs
of customers. The completion of the acquisition is expected
to further strengthen the Group’s capabilities in both hardware
such as cars and equipment and software including staff and
services with respect to long-term car rental service.

Electronic components/materials business

In view of the implementation of cost-saving measures which
began in 2013 whereby the Group has streamlined certain
operation flows, reduced manpower and tightened cost
control policies, the Group has focused more on the trading of
electronic components/materials which provides steady income
while requiring relatively fewer resources to enhance the
business performance of the Group. Revenue from the Group’s
trading of electronic components/materials segment increased
significantly from approximately HK$2.0 million in 2013 to
HK$193.5 million in the current year. The Group recorded
gross profit and gross profit margin from this segment of
approximately HK$8.3 million and 4.3%, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWR O

Consumer electronic devices/platforms and
related solutions/services business

Revenue from the Group’s consumer electronic devices/
platforms and related solutions/services segment decrease by
approximately 86% from approximately HK$198.0 million in
2013 to approximately HK$28.1 million for the current year.
The significant decrease in revenue from this segment was
mainly due to the cessation of business with one of our largest
customers for traditional audio-visual products in December
20183. Accordingly, we implemented a shift in our product mix
from sale of traditional audio-visual products, which are of
relatively higher sales volumes but lower margins, to the golf
swing analyzer (“3BaysGSA”), which is of lower sales volume
but much higher margins. Despite the decrease in revenue
and gross profit, our gross profit margin in this segment has
increased from 11.9% in 2013 to 30.0% in the current year.
We have also allocated more resources to the provision of
project management services during the current year which
contributed HK$16.5 million in revenue in the current year as
compared to HK$6.5 million in 2013, representing an increase
by approximately 154%.

Future Outlook

According to the independent industry consultant Roland
Berger’s projection, the size of Mainland China’s car rental
market is expected to expand further to approximately RMB65
billion with a total fleet size of approximately 779,000 in 2018,
providing significant scope for development and expansion.
With further optimization of the market economy and the
continued investment into technological means such as
e-commerce, Mainland China’s car rental industry is entering a
stage of rapid development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is actively evaluating the development of the
car rental industry, and is considering engaging in areas of
different growth potential, which includes car rental bookings
from overseas, car rental services over the internet and even
the establishment of our own brand. The Group believes these
business opportunities offering outstanding growth potential
can further expand its source of income and provide new
business momentum to the Group. In 2015, the Group will
continue to conduct market positioning studies and strategic
deployment. The objective is to implement as soon as possible
the operational plans for car rental business, which include
asset optimization and full integration with respect to the
acquired car rental business. With the extensive experience
of the team, relevant strategies to enhance the existing brand
and its management are being formulated according to the
practical circumstances of the Company.

While relying on its sound financial structure and extensive
experience in administration and management, the Group
will remain open to new ideas and prudent in terms of the
proper allocation of internal resources and careful assessment
of operational risks. While considering the challenging future
market environment, the Group will also seek additional
opportunities in the car rental industry through acquisition and
integration.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of the Group
Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately 11.1%
from approximately HK$200.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2013 to approximately HK$222.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014. The increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in sale of goods and the
rendering of services by HK$11.6 million and HK$10.0 million
respectively as compared to the prior year.
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Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group increased by approximately 14%
from approximately HK$179.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 to approximately HK$205.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in sales of electronic components/
materials during the year.

Gross profit and margin

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$16.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2014, representing
a decrease of approximately 18% as compared to the gross
profit recorded in the prior year. However, the gross profit
margin decreased by approximately 2.7 percentage points
from 10.3% in the prior year to 7.6% in the current year under
review. The decrease was resulted from the increase in sales
of electronic components/materials, which had lower profit
margin as compared to the sales of consumer electronic

devices.
Other income and gains

Other income and gains of the Group increased by
approximately 651%, from approximately HK$1.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately HK$8
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The increase
was mainly resulted from the income in relation to certain
procurement and credit arrangements as well as waivers of
other borrowings recognised during the current year.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs decreased by approximately
49% from approximately HK$5.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2013 to approximately HK$2.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014, mainly due to the decrease
in the number of research and development projects after the
implementation of the cost-saving measures during the current
year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
15% from approximately HK$12.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2013 to approximately HK$14.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014, mainly due to the increased
promotion and advertising efforts incurred for selling of goods
as compared to the prior year.

General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses increased by
approximately 31% from approximately HK$19.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately HK$25.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2014, mainly due to

the increased legal and professional fees incurred as a result
of the corporate exercises conducted during the current year.

Other expenses, net

Other expenses, net, decreased by approximately 39%
from approximately HK$42.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 to approximately HK$26.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014 mainly due to the reduction
of impairment/write-off of trade and other receivables in the
current year.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately 99% from
approximately HK$6.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2013 to approximately HK$0.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, mainly due to the full repayment of bank
borrowings in the first half of 2014.

Income tax (credit)/expense

Income tax expense of approximately HK$3.6 million was
incurred for the year ended 31 December 2014 as compared
to an income tax credit of approximately HK$64,000
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2013 mainly due
to the reversal of deferred tax asset and certain income tax
arising from profit generated from the sale of goods in the
current year.
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Liquidity and financial resources RBESRMBEER
2014 2013
—ZE—mE —_ZE—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current assets MENEE 309,959,152 130,435,037
Current liabilities MENEE 124,285,443 128,992,990
Current ratio )R 2.49 1.01

As at 31 December 2014, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$8.1 million (20183:
HK$26.1 million).

In view of the Group’s current level of cash and cash
equivalents, funds generated internally from our operations
and from the corporate actions completed during the year, the
Board is confident that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its debt repayment and financing needs for
its operations for the foreseeable future.

R-_ZE—MNFE+_A=Z+—H  XEENHESE
kBREEBYH /8,100,000 T(ZF—=
£ 1 26,100,000/ 7T) °

£RIAEERARE LR EENHKT -
1 R T PRI A WA R AR R B R 0 2 A
BHENES  BESREREENT R R
Y T T AR (T R BB 0B R R T
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Gearing ratio EXREELER
2014 2013
= ik —T=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Total interest-bearing other borrowings TEHMEERRE 13,697,445 43,630,795
Equity Em 301,941,139 13,679,463
315,638,584 57,310,258
Gearing ratio BEAXRBELE 4.3% 76.1%
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As at 31 December 2014, the gearing ratio is 4.3% (2018:
76.1%). As at 31 December 2014, the maturity profile of the
interest-bearing other borrowings of the Group falling due
within one year, and the second year, inclusive, amounted HRET B EMEE 5 A% 48,400,000 L(=
to approximately HK$8.4 million (2013: HK$31.3 million) and

HK$5.3 million (2013: HK$12.3 million), respectively.

Capital structure

The capital of the Company comprises only ordinary shares.
As at 31 December 2014, the total number of the ordinary
shares of the Company was 4,081,375,000 shares. The total 4,081,375,000 (&R0 o AN A E B AR

RZE—NFE+-_A=+—0 BREBEHLX
BA3% (ZE—=F :76.1%) - R-_ZT—MNF
+ZA=+—H8 ' AEER—FARE_FZ

T(ZF—=% : 12,300,000 %7T) °

BEARERE

ARBAWMEAEZERREBR - R_FT—@O
FT-A=+—RH ARAAEERAER

number of the ordinary shares of the Company had been FRZEEHNT

changed during the year as follows:

T — = 4 : 31,300,000 7t ) &% 5,300,000 %

No. of

ordinary shares

BARE

1 January 2014 —E—NF—HA—H 1,120,500,000
Add: (I) Open Offer o) NAEE 1,344,600,000

Add: (Il) Issue of Subscription Shares pursuant B
to the Subscription Agreement

entered into on 26 April 2014 BT RERGD 616,275,000

Add: (Ill) Placing fncQn) EREHE 1,000,000,000

31 December 2014 —E-WF+=ZA=+—H 4,081,375,000
0] In January 2014 there was an issue of the () RZ-ZZE—MF— A ' 1,344,600,000 %
1,344,600,000 offer shares by way of open offer BERMEUN2FARE(RAERE]D

(the “Open Offer”). The ordinary resolutions for all
transactions contemplated under the Open Offer were
duly passed by way of poll at the EGM held on 19
December 2013. Further details of the Open Offer were
set out in the announcements of the Company dated
19 December 2013 and 24 January 2014, and in the

circular of the Company dated 3 December 2013.
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On 26 April 2014, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) with Nat-Ace Pharmaceutical Ltd.
(renamed as Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited) (“Sino
Merchant”) pursuant to which the Company agreed
to issue, and Sino Merchant agreed to subscribe for
616,275,000 shares of the Company in cash at a price
of HK$0.168 per share (the “Share Subscription”).
On the same date, Sino Merchant entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with four of the then shareholders of
the Company (the “Vendors”) pursuant to which
Sino Merchant agreed to purchase, and the Vendors
agreed to sell an aggregate of 1,010,438,121 shares
of the Company at a price of HK$0.168 (the “Share
Purchase”).

The ordinary resolutions for all transactions
contemplated under the Subscription Agreement were
duly passed by way of poll at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 2 July 2014.

On 9 July 2014, the Company and Sino Merchant
jointly announced that the conditions precedent to the
completion of the Subscription Agreement and Sale
and Purchase Agreement had been fulfilled and the
completion of the Subscription Agreement and Sale
and Purchase Agreement took place on 9 July 2014.
As immediately after the Share Purchase and the Share
Subscription, Sino Merchant and the parties acting in
concert with it are interested in 1,626,713,121 Shares,
representing approximately 52.79% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company, CCB International
Capital Limited had made an unconditional mandatory
cash offer (the “Cash Offer”) on behalf of Sino
Merchant to acquire all the 1,454,661,879 Shares (the
“Disinterested Shares”) at an offer price of HK$0.168.
An offer document containing, among other things,
details of the terms of the Cash Offer was despatched
to the shareholders of the Company on 16 July 2014.
On the same date, the Company and Sino Merchant
jointly announced that the appointment of (i) each of
Ms. Deng Shufen, Mr. Dai Yumin, Ms. Liu Jiangyuan
and Mr. Gui Bin as an executive director; (ii) Mr. Wang
Yongbin as a non-executive director; and (iii) each of
Mr. Fang Jun, Mr. Zhao Xianming and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit,
Ernest as an independent non-executive director had
been effective from 16 July 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 30 July 2014, the Company and Sino Merchant
jointly announced that in accordance with Rule 8.4 of
the Takeovers Code, the Company was required to
despatch an offeree board circular (the “Response
Document”) containing, among other things, the
letter from the Board, the recommendations from the
Independent Board Committee to the holders of the
Disinterested Shares and the holder of the Options
in relation to the Cash Offer and the advice and
recommendations from the independent financial adviser
to the independent board committee, the holders of
the Disinterested Shares and the holder of the Options
within 14 days of the publication of the Offer Document,
being on or before 30 July 2014. However, as
additional time was required to compile and ascertain
the relevant information to be included in the Response
Document, it was expected that the date of despatch
of the Response Document would be on or before 15
August 2014 and accordingly, the Cash Offer would
remain open until the 14th day after the despatch of the
Response Document or 29 August 2014, whichever was
earlier.

The Response Document containing, among other
things, the letter from the Board, the recommendations
from the Independent Board Committee to the
Independent Shareholders and the holder of the
Options in relation to the Offers and the advice and
recommendations from the Independent Financial
Adviser to the Independent Board Committee, the
Independent Shareholders and the holder of the
Options in relation to the Offers, was despatched to
the Shareholders and the holder of the Options on 15
August 2014 in accordance with the Takeovers Code.
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On 29 August 2014, the Company and Sino Merchant
jointly announced the close of the unconditional
mandatory cash offer by CCB International Capital
Limited for an on behalf of Sino Merchant to acquire all
the issued shares in, and cancel all outstanding options
of the Company (other than those already owned
by or agreed to be acquired by Sino Merchant and
parties acting in concert with it) (the “Offers”). Upon
the close of the Offers, Sino Merchant had received
valid acceptances in respect of a total of 634,760,768
shares, representing approximately 20.60% of the entire
share capital of the Company (assuming the options are
not exercised) on the same date, and no acceptances
in respect of the options had been received by Sino
Merchant. Accordingly, on the same date, Sino
Merchant and parties acting in concert with it became
interested in an aggregate of 2,261,473,889 shares,
representing 73.39% of the entire issued share capital
of the Company and of the voting rights which may be
exercised at general meetings of the Company.

Further details of the above transactions were set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 8 May 2014,
9 July 2014, 16 July 2014 and 30 July 2014, 15 August
2014 and 29 August 2014.

On 15 September 2014 (after trading hours), the
Company entered into a conditional placing agreement
(the “Placing Agreement”) with CCB International
Capital Limited (the “Placing Agent”) whereby the
Company conditionally agreed to place, through
the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis, up to
1,000,000,000 placing shares to not less than six
independent placees at a price of HK$0.175 per
placing share (the “Placing”). The maximum number
of 1,000,000,000 placing shares were successfully
placed, the gross proceeds from the placing was
HK$175 million and the net proceeds from the placing
(after deduction of relevant expenses of approximately
HK$2.5 million) amounted to approximately HK$172.5
million which was intended to be used by the Group to
invest in the car rental business as well as to expand
the Group’s trading business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The net proceeds raised per placing share upon
completion of the placing was approximately HK$0.173
per placing share.

The Placing Agent would procure each placee to
undertake in writing, on or before the date of completion
of the Placing, in favour of the Company that such
placee would not, at any time between the date of
the Placing Agreement and the date falling six (6)
months after the date of completion of the placing, sell,
transfer, sale or otherwise dispose of, or enter into any
agreement for the sale, transfer or other disposal of any
of the placing share allotted and issued to such placee
or any interest therein, or agree to grant any option,
warrant or other right carrying the right to acquire any
of the placing share or enter into any swap, derivative
or other arrangement that transfers to another, in
whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of
ownership of any of the placing share.

The ordinary resolution for all transactions contemplated
under the Placing Agreement was duly passed by way
of poll at the extraordinary general meeting held on 7
November 2014.

Further details of the above transactions were set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 15
September 2014 and 20 November 2014, and the
circular of the Company dated 21 October 2014.
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Significant investment

On 15 October 2014 (after trading hours), Eastern Crystal
Limited (“Eastern Crystal”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, Prime Elite and the existing shareholders of
Prime Elite entered into the subscription agreement (the
“Subscription”) in respect of the subscription of approximately
10% of the equity interest in Prime Elite. Pursuant to the
Subscription, Prime Elite has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue, and Eastern Crystal has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, 111,111 new ordinary shares of Prime Elite
at the consideration of US$5 million (approximately HK$39
million). Prime Elite, through entering into certain contractual
arrangements by its wholly-foreign owned enterprise to be
established in the PRC, will have the right of control, economic
interests and benefits in a company established in the PRC
that is engaged in the business of online car rental services in
the PRC.

Further details of the above transaction were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 15 October 2014.

Material acquisition

On 28 November 2014 (after trading hours), Easy Top Ace
Limited (“Easy Top”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Nimble Ring Limited (“Nimble Ring”) entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (“SPA”), pursuant
to which Easy Top conditionally agreed to purchase and
Nimble Ring conditionally agreed to sell 100% equity interest
of Gigantic, at the total consideration of RMB65 million
(approximately HK$81 million).

As some of the applicable percentage ratio (as defined under
the Listing Rules) under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules in
relation to the acquisition exceeds 5% but was less than 25%,
the acquisition contemplated under the SPA constitutes a
discloseable transaction for the Company under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules and therefore was subject to notification and
announcement requirements but exempt from Shareholders’
approval under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Further details of the above transaction were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 November 2014.

Foreign currency exposure

The foreign currency exposure of the Group primarily arises
from revenue or income generated, cost and expenses
incurred, and certain bank and other borrowings denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the Group’s
operating units. For the Group’s operating units that have
United States dollar (“US$”) as their functional currency, their
foreign currency transactions and the units’ monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that were
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
as at 31 December 2014 were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”). As the HK$ is pegged to the US$ within
a narrow band, the Group does not expect any significant
movements in the US$/HK$ exchange rate. Accordingly, we
consider the Group’s foreign currency risk exposure is not
significant.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group did not have
any significant contingent liabilities.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the annual general meeting of the Company
will be held on 26 June 2015 (the “AGM”). The notice of the
AGM will be dispatched to the shareholders of the Company
and available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange in due course.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWR O

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
24 June 2015 to 26 June 2015, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfers of shares shall be effected. In
order to qualify for attending the forthcoming annual general
meeting, all transfer of shares, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms, must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:00 p.m. on 23 June 2015.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed a total of 53
(2013: 27) employees. Total staff costs, including Directors’
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$14.0 million for
the year under review (2013: approximately HK$19.9 million).

The Group’s remuneration policies were determined with
reference to the performance, qualification and experience
of individual employee, as well as the results of the Group
and the market conditions. The Group provided discretionary
bonus, medical insurance, provident fund, education subsidy
and training to its employees.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEENFARER

Executive Directors

Ms. Deng Shufen, aged 50, is the Chairman, Executive
Director and Authorized Representative of the Company. She
has also served as the general manager and the vice chairman
of the board of directors of Huashang Group Company
Limited (2B ABR 2 7)) since 1993 and the deputy general
manager of China Wood (Group) Company Limited* (# B &K
M (EBE)BFRATF)since 2006. Ms. Deng was also appointed
as the general manager of the legal department of China
Leasing Company Limited* (R EIFAEHFR A 7)) in 2003 and the
vice chairman of the board of directors of Jiangxi Juye Asset
Management Company Limited* GCIRE B2 EEZTIEAR A T])in
2006. She graduated from Jiangxi University (later reorganised
as Nanchang University) with a bachelor degree of law. Ms.
Deng is the spouse of Mr. Dai Yumin, an Executive Director
and President of the Company.

Mr. Dai Yumin, aged 54, is an Executive Director and President
of the Company. He has also served as the director, chairman
of the board of directors and group president of Zhongjing
Holdings Company Limited* (4 & % % & R 2 &) ) since 1993
and the executive director and the compliance officer of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (FF B & 4 % 2
HEEMRAT), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange, since 2009. He is currently
the chairman of the board of directors of Shaanxi Ruisheng
Biological Technology Company Limited* (Bt 78 B 2% 4 4 B 5
AR /AA])and Shenzhen Ainier Cornea Engineering Co., Ltd.*
(RYINEBAEIEAR QA )and the legal representative
of China Wood (Group) Company Limited* (FF B AR (£ E )
E R A & ). Mr. Dai also served as the director, head of
reorganization management committee and president of China
Leasing Company Limited* (R EFEHFR A 7]). He graduated
from Beijing Youth Enterprise Management College (4t & F 1
HEEIPPHEERR ) with a bachelor degree of finance. Mr. Dai is
the spouse of Ms. Deng Shufen, the Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSRETEBNHAER

Ms. Liu Jiangyuan, aged 34, is an Executive Director of
the Company. She has also served as a director of Anhui
Pioneer Aviation Finance Leasing Company Limited* (Z %%t
EMERMEMHEEARR AR )since 2012. Ms. Liu also assumed
various positions such as the senior manager of investment
department of United Entrepreneurship Guarantee Group
Company Limited* (Bt & BIEEREEBRAF]), the executive
director of Chenxin Asset Management Company Limited”
(EFMEESEAR A, the assistant to the president of
China Aviation Finance Limited(ffF B i = € & A R A 7@ ),
the managing director of Dalian Pioneer United Investment
Consulting Company Limited* (KE L EB AR EBAER A
A])and the administration and human resource manager of
Dalian Pioneer Commercial Service Company Limited* ( KiE# 5
BB RE AR AE). She graduated from Dalian University of
Foreign Language with a bachelor degree of English.

Mr. Gui Bin, aged 50, is an Executive Director of the Company.
He is currently the chairman of board of directors of Shenzhen
Jinkunda Investment Company Limited* GEYITh & #iER E G
‘A a))and Shenzhen Hengtairui Industrial Company Limited* (%
NH=HMEXBMRATF). He is also the legal representative
of Yunnan Yongping Jintai Mining Company Limited* (&K
F&TBEER QA )and Jiangxi Jintai Industrial Company
Limited* CIASHFRERERF]).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERESREEENEAEE

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Wang Yongbin, aged 46, is an Non-Executive Director
of the Company. He is currently the chairman of board of
directors of Dalian Fuliang Investment Company Limited* (X
BERIREAMR AT, the executive director of Heilongjiang
Huiliang Catering Investment Company Limited* (281 [E R &
FRIEE AR AT ), the chairman of board of directors and the
general manager of Liangyun Group Company Limited* (Ri&
E£B AR AF), the director of Dalian Jinzhou Lianfeng County
Bank Co., Ltd.*(Ki&E& MEENERITIRHBRAF])and the
chairman of board of directors of Dalian Liangyun Property
Development Company Limited* (K:E R EREMAEMZE AR A
A]). Mr. Wang also assumed various positions such as the
engineer of the Storage Company of Dalian Grain Import and
Export Transportation Company Limited* (K& g R # £ A#
EH N TIREENDT)and the deputy head of the infrastructure
construction division of Dalian Grain Import and Export
Transportation Company Limited*( KiEREREH OEZEE N A E
ZEEZ) . Mr. Wang graduated from Jilin Institute of Technology
(currently known as Jilin University) with a doctor degree of
engineering.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Jun, aged 52, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director, the Chairman of Nomination Committee, each of
member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. He has also served as the executive member
and executive vice chairman of the Cross-straits Medicine
Exchange Association of the National Health and Family
Planning Commission of the PRC*(fr#E A R MBI E R &4
MABEFZEQBRMERBEGERINNE), the executive
member and vice chairman of China Sexology Association
(FEMES), the publisher and executive chief editor of the
China Sexology Journal* ({ Bl %}E)) and the deputy head
of the Sexology Research Center of Peking University Health
Science Center* (16 R KB EEE I EFAITAH L) . Mr. Fang also
assumed various positions such as the executive member
and secretary general of Wu Jieping Medical Foundation (&
[ FEEEE e =), He graduated from Peking University Health
Science Center with a master degree of Social Medicine
and Health Service Management and a doctor degree of
Epidemiology and Health Statistics.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSRETEBNHAER

Mr. Zhao Xianming, aged 38, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director, the Chairman of Audit Committee, each of member
of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. He assumed various positions such as the supervisor
of the legal and auditorial center of Fanhua Construction Group
Limited* GZ#ERE X EB AR A 7)), the general legal counsel, the
vice president and the board secretary of China Agritech Inc. (a
company listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market). He graduated
from China Foreign Affairs University with a maser degree of
international law and is a certified enterprise risk manager.

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest, aged 47, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the Chairman of Remuneration Committee,
a member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He has served as the president and group chief
financial officer of KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited (its subsidiary,
KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited is listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange) since 2011. Mr.
Wong has also served as the independent non-executive
director of Renheng Enterprise Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) since 2011
and the non-executive director of Adamas Finance Asia Ltd
(formerly known as China Private Equity Investment Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Alternative Investment Market
of London Stock Exchange Plc. and Frankfurt Stock Exchange)
since 2014. He also assumed various positions such as
executive director and chief financial officer of China Private
Equity Investment Holdings Limited, chief financial officer of
Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research Institute
Company Limited, the vice president of Vertex Management
(HK)., the manager and head of supervision of the business
department of Guangdong Investment Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and the portfolio
manager of Transpac Capital Ltd.. Mr. Wong graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree of business
administration. He also obtained a master degree of science in
investment management from Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and a master degree of science in electronic
engineering from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Wong is also
a charter-holder of Chartered Financial Analyst and a member
of Hong Kong Securities Institute.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance
report for the year ended 31 December 2014. This report
highlights the key corporate governance practices of the
Company.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company acknowledges the importance of good
corporate governance practices and procedures and regards
a pre-eminent board of directors, sound internal controls and
accountability to all shareholders as the core elements of its
corporate governance principles. The Company endeavours
to ensure that its businesses are conducted in accordance
with rules and regulations, and applicable codes and
standards. The Company has adopted the Code Provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

The Board reviews at least annually the corporate governance
practices of the Company to ensure its continuous compliance
with the Code, and make appropriate changes if considered
necessary. The Company was in compliance with the
applicable code provisions in the Code (the “Code Provision”)
for the year ended 31 December 2014. The following sections
set out the principles in the Code as they have been applied
by the Company, including any deviations therefrom, for the
year under review.

Board

The Company is governed by the Board, which is responsible
for overseeing the overall strategy and development of the
Company, as well as monitoring the internal control policies
and evaluating the financial performance of the Group. The
Board sets the overall strategies and directions for the Group
with a view to developing its business and enhancing the
shareholders’ value.

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprises four executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”). During the year ended
31 December 2014, the Board held a total of 10 meetings.
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TERERBE

During the year, the attendance of each Director is set out

FA - BEFEHHEBERDOT

below:
Attendance

Directors == HEER
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Deng Shufen BRZS 2+

(appointed on 16/7/2014) (Chairman) (R=ZF—WF+ A+ NAEZE)(FE) 7/7
Mr. Dai Yumin (appointed on 16/7/2014) HEHLE

(President) (R=ZF—WF+ A+ NHEZE)(#BH) 77
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan (appointed on 16/7/2014) BTRZ T (R=F—F+ A+ NHEZF) 5/5
Mr. Gui Bin (appointed on 16/7/2014) HEREE(R=ZF—WFLAT NAEZF) 4/5
Mr. Mung Wai Ming (resigned on 29/8/2014) SEPEE (R =-ZF—mENH =11 HEHE) 4/4
Ms. Liu Yee Nee (resigned on 29/8/2014) BERZT(R=ZF—WENAZ+/LAETE) 4/4
Mr. Lee Rabi (resigned on 29/8/2014) PHREE(RZF—MF A= HEFF) 4/4
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Wang Yongbin (appointed on 16/7/2014) FXWEERZE—FLA T NHEZF) 1/5
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Fang Jun (appointed on 16/7/2014) FEREERZF—WFELAFNAEZEF) 5/5
Mr. Zhao Xianming (appointed on 16/7/2014) HEPEE(R=ZF—WHELAFNHEZHE) 5/5
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest ERETEA

(appointed on 16/7/2014) (R=ZF—pF+H+~NHEZE) 5/5
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen EREHELE

(resigned on 29/8/2014) (R=ZF—WF A=+ HEE) 3/4
Mr. Ng Wai Hung (resigned on 29/8/2014) REHEE(R=ZF—HENA=F/LAEE) 4/4
Ms. Zhou Jing (resigned on 29/8/2014) BT (R=ZF—WFNA=+/LHEF) 4/4

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors (a majority
of whom are independent) provided the Company with a
wide range of expertise and a balance of skills and brought
independent judgment on issues of strategic direction,
development, performance and risk management through their
contribution at Board meetings and Committee meetings.
Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has complied with the requirements under Rules
3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules. The former Rule requires
that every board of directors of a listed issuer must include at
least three INEDs and the latter Rule requires that at least one
of the INEDs must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
All INEDs also meet the guidelines for assessment of their
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Further, up to the date of this Report, the Board has not been
aware of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to
believe that their independence has been impaired.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
Executive Director an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
still considers such Directors to be independent. The
Independent Non-Executive Directors are explicitly identified in
all corporate communications. The day-to-day running of the
Company is delegated to the management.

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual
operating budget, annual and interim results, recommendations
on Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, material
contracts and transactions as well as other significant policy
and financial matters. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
responsibility to the executive management. The respective
functions of the Board and management of the Company have
been formalised and set out in writing and will be reviewed by
the Board from time to time to ensure that they are consistent
with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance
to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14
days’ notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all
Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures
that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with.
The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally
sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date
of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such
other Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting
are circulated to all Directors for their comment before
being tabled at the following Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous
Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives
a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well
as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being
a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/
her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to
or updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
and senior executives to enroll in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, companies ordinance/act and corporate governance
practices organised by professional bodies, independent
auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so that they can
continuously update and further improve their relevant
knowledge and skills. From time to time, Directors are
provided with written training materials to develop and refresh
their professional skills.
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e s 3/

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed
company in compliance with the requirement of the Code on
continuous professional development during the year ended 31
December 2014:
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Corporate
Governance,
Regulatory
Development
and Trainings
on other

relevant topics
hEES -

EERRER
Hfth A5

Directors 2= 15 B EI
Executive Directors HITESE
Ms. Deng Shufen B 22+ v
Mr. Dai Yumin BE®EE v
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan TR A+ v
Mr. Gui Bin E Pt v
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Wang Yongbin T L v
Independent non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Fang Jun FEEAE v
Mr. Zhao Xianming HERLE v/
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest R A v

Non-Executive Directors

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors were appointed
for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

FHTES

FEBYHFATEETONABEHESRE
ARBANFABERANERBFASH

BERERSE -
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Committees

the Board
has established the remuneration committee, nomination

As part of the corporate governance practices,

committee, and audit committee. All of the committees are
chaired by and composed of INEDs with terms of reference in
accordance with the principles set out in the Code.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on 27
November 2009 with written terms of reference. As at 31
December 2014, the remuneration committee comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr.
Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest. The committee is chaired by Mr. Wong
Yiu Kit, Ernest.

Fang Jun, Mr. Zhao Xianming and Mr.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are
formulating remuneration policies, determining the specific
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive Directors. During the
year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration committee
reviewed and made recommendation on the remuneration
packages of the existing Directors, the newly appointed
Directors and the senior management.

During the year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was
held and the attendance of each member is set out below:

Eg

XM

TEREAFRT EFSCCKUFTMEZE
REAZBELRENEZES - MAZESY
HBYIFMTESRETIFENAR  XERR
STRIFFE MR BB EEmBREEE -

® Bt

FTWES

ARRR_ZBENF+—A-+LHEKIEE
%EH&%%@IE’J FHEEe - BE_T-HF
TZRA=1t—H0 FMZBEENXKEBEE=4
%iihﬂﬁi%?ﬂxf‘ﬁi CHEEBERAEERER
BEE - ARESTERZEEENIE -

%Méé@%f%ﬁ%%%ﬂ%%ﬁ“\ﬁﬁ
HITESENSNEEBEMARTMNEE UK

MEFSRNABENTESE Mmkm B
—?—@$+—H7+—E¢¢F-%M§

BERINEEES  MEZAEEFES

B m 5 B I 1R B R

FA-FHEESERT-REF - TXHI
BEREBMHFEBR

Attendance
Remuneration Committee FTMZEES HEER
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest =RGEL A N/A
(Chairman, appointed on 30/8/2014) (8 R=ZF—FNA=1HEZE) i A
Mr. Fang Jun (appointed on 30/8/2014) HBREER=ZF—HFENA=1+HEZE) N/A
TE A
Mr. Zhao Xianming (appointed on 30/8/2014) HERLE N/A
(R=ZF—WWFE\A=+HEZF) i A
Mr. Ng Wai Hung RIZMWSRAE
(resigned on 29/8/2014) (R=ZZF—F\A =+ HEE) 1/1
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen HEEHELE
(resigned on 29/8/2014) (R=F—pF )\ H =+ HEE) 1/1
Ms. Zhou Jing (resigned on 29/8/2014) B+ (R-F—mE/H =17 HEF) 1/1
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 27
November 2009 with written terms of reference. As at 31
December 2014, the nomination committee comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. Fang Jun, Mr. Zhao Xianming and Mr.
Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest. The committee is chaired by Mr. Fang

Jun.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, formulating
relevant procedures for nomination of directors, identifying
qualified individuals to become members of the Board and
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors. During the year ended 31
December 2014,
composition of the Board, the profiles of the candidates to be
appointed as new Directors and made recommendation to the

Board.

the nomination committee reviewed the

B R

REEEE

ARRIRZZFEZFNF+-A=-+LAKLEE
EMRERENRERZES HE_T-NF
T-A=1+—0B REZEENWRKEBRE=4%
BYIFRATESHRLE  BERLERER
BEE - TEREERZZEENIE -

REZEENIEBBE AR ESSHLESE -
KANMZER - GBIEREEZHNHEBRET  WE
BERBATETREZGNE  UERMESF
SREEHEIRESNER BE_ZT—NF
TZA=T—HLEFE REZEERIES
FHEK c BEZAERMEFTAENERRA
EEgREHER -

During the year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held FRIREELEE® REeZF o T XET
and the attendance of each member is set out below: EREMEHEBR
Attendance
Nomination Committee REEEY HEER
Mr. Fang Jun F & AE N/A
(Chairman, appointed on 30/8/2014) (8 RZF—FNA=1HEZE) i A
Mr. Zhao Xianming (appointed on 30/8/2014) HERLE N/A
(R=ZFB—mFENA =+ HEZE) A iE A
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest =R E N/A
(appointed on 30/8/2014) (R=ZF—WFNA=THEZF) TEA
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen HREHLELE
(resigned on 29/8/2014) (R=ZF—WF)\HA =+ HEAE) 1/1
Mr. Ng Wai Hung (resigned on 29/8/2014) REELRER-_F—MFAZ1THEFE) 1/1
Ms. Zhou Jing (resigned on 29/8/2014) BfFZE(R=ZF—F A=+ HEE) 1/1
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Audit committee

The Company established an audit committee on 27 November
2009. As at 31 December 2014, the audit committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Fang Jun, Mr. Wong Yiu Kit,
Ernest. The committee is chaired by Mr. Zhao Xianming. The

Zhao Xianming and Mr.

primary duties of the audit committee are to supervise the
internal control policies, the financial reporting systems and
procedures of the Company, to review the financial statements
and reports of the Group, and to review the terms of
engagement and scope of audit work of the external auditors.
The audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 have been reviewed by the audit
committee.

The audit committee of the Company has met the external
auditors of the Company, Messrs. Ernst & Young, and
reviewed the Group’s results for the year ended 31 December
2014.

the audit

During the year ended 31 December 2014,

Eﬂﬁ'ﬁi&ﬁﬁé@%%i HERL
iﬁ’j%ﬁé,\ EMER  BERZZREENIER
WEQ**X$QTE’JW*B§*% 128 SRR ES
mAERF  BHAKBOMBEHRERMBRE - A
KA wt NS AZ BUAM B R B AR R A B AZ TAERI 8
B #ZZESCENAKSEREZE _T—OF
TZA=+—BLEEENEELZWHRE

ARBEZZEREEARARE ZINBEEE L
KEFMERAEHE  TEEHNAKE#HE
E-FE+-_A=+—BULEFEZEE -

BE_T-MFT_A=1t—BLFE FEZ

committee reviewed the internal control system, as well as the ZECeENAEBRRNNEIELERSG - AR E
interim and annual results of the Group, which, in the opinion REFHE BERLTEERE  ZEHEEIIR
of the audit committee, were prepared in compliance with the RBiEA et R R R MmER o
applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules.
During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held and €A - %%%@E@E%ﬁﬁﬁ/ 2@ TXHE
the attendance of each member is set out below: EREMHEE
Attendance
Audit Committee EREESR HEBR
Mr. Zhao Xianming HERLE N/A
(Chairman, appointed on 30/8/2014) (T RZFE—WFENA=+HEZEF) TEA
Mr. Fang Jun (appointed on 30/8/2014) FEEER=_F—WFNA=+HEZE) N/A
N iE A
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest =RGEE A N/A
(appointed on 30/8/2014) (R=_F—mWFNA=F+HEZ(F) A3 A
Ms. Zhou Jing Azt
(resigned on 29/8/2014) (R=ZF—pF )\ H =+ HEE) 2/2
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen EEHLE
(resigned on 29/8/2014) (R=ZF—pF )\ H =+ HEHE) 2/2
Mr. Ng Wai Hung (resigned on 29/8/2014) REBRFEE(R=ZFE—HENA=T/LHEFEF) 2/2
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a corporate governance committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a corporate
governance committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

S to review and monitor the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and directors; and

(9 to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an
emphasis on the Board’s quality, effective internal control,
stringent disclosure practices and transparency and
accountability to all shareholders of the Company. The Board
strives to comply with the code provisions and reviews its
corporate governance policy regularly in order to maintain high
standards of business ethics and corporate governance, and
to ensure the full compliance of our operations with applicable
laws and regulations.

During the year, members of the Board have reviewed and
discussed, among other things, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance at regular board meetings.
They have also reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors, and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements as well as its disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report. The Board has reviewed the
code of conduct applicable to employees and directors setting
out the standards of behavior that the Company expects from
them and the guidelines on how they should handle different
situations in business dealings with the Group.
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Compliance with the Model Code Set
Out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The Company
periodically issues notices to the Directors reminding them
of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed
securities during the blackout periods before the publication
of announcements of results. The Company has confirmed,
having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors
have complied with the Model Code throughout the period
under review.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for overseeing
the preparation of the accounts of the Company. The Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out
in the section “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this annual
report.

The Group’s external auditors provided the following services
to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014:

W R R MR R
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining an effective
internal control system in order to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and the assets of the Company against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of
proper books and records for the provision of reliable financial
information, and ensuring compliance with the relevant rules
and regulations.

The audit committee reviewed the overall effectiveness of the
internal control system and reported its findings and made
recommendations to the Board. The Directors have conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system for the year ended 31 December 2014. The Board will
continue to assess the effectiveness of internal controls by
considering reviews performed by the audit committee and
executive management.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any
one or more members of the Company holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such
of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and the meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board will be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the

Company.
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Communication with Shareholders and
Procedures for Putting forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

All published information, including all the statutory
announcements and press releases, is promptly posted on
the Group’s website at http//www.perceptiondigital.com.
Shareholders can also send enquiries to the Board or the
Company Secretary, and/or proposals to be put forward at
shareholders’ meeting for shareholders’ consideration by email
at sales@perceptiondigital.com or directly by raising questions
at the annual general meeting of the Company.

Investor Relations

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations. It
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and investment
public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual
and interim reports, announcements and circulars. The
corporate website of the Company (www.perceptiondigitial.
com) has provided an effective communication platform to the
public and the shareholders.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary of the Company, Mr. Leung Cho Tak,
Joseph, was appointed on 30 August 2014. He is a full time
employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge
of the Company. The Company Secretary is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters. For the
year under review, the Company Secretary has confirmed that
he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

Annual Report 2014 == — [ F F 4§
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) hereby
present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Results

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 56 to 198.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public
as at the date of this report.

Share Capital, Share Options and
Warrants

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital,
warrants, and share options during the year are set out in
notes 29 and 30 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year under review.

Report of the Directors
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Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited financial statements, is set out on pages 199 to
200. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share
premium, other reserves and accumulated losses. As at 31
December 2014, the Company had distributable reserves of
HK$269,506,383 (2013: Nil).

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 95% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 60%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 100% of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
to 40%.
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None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers.

Directors
The Directors during the year were:
Executive directors:

Ms. Deng Shufen

(appointed on 16/7/2014) (Chairman)
Mr. Dai Yumin

(appointed on 16/7/2014) (President)
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan (appointed on 16/7/2014)
Mr. Gui Bin (appointed on 16/7/2014)
Mr. Mung Wai Ming (resigned on 29/8/2014)
Ms. Liu Yee Nee (resigned on 29/8/2014)
Mr. Lee Rabi (resigned on 29/8/2014)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Yongbin (appointed on 16/7/2014)
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Jun (appointed on 16/7/2014)

Mr. Zhao Xianming (appointed on 16/7/2014)

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (appointed on 16/7/2014)
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen (resigned on 29/8/2014)
Mr. Ng Wai Hung (resigned on 29/8/2014)

Ms. Zhou Jing (resigned on 29/8/2014)

In accordance with articles 83 and 84 of the Company’s
articles of association, Ms. Deng Shufen, Mr. Dai Yumin, Ms.
Liu Jiangyuan, Mr. Gui Bin, Mr. Wang Yongbin, Mr. Fang Jun,
Mr. Zhao Xianming and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest will retire
from offices and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election, at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.
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Confirmation of independence

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent as at the date of this report.

Biographical details of directors and
senior management

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 28 of
this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The service contracts between the Company and each of the
Directors are for a term of three years subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Contract of Significance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Directors had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.
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Competing Interests

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors were
not aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the
controlling shareholder and their respective associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete
with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interest which any such person has or may have with the
Group.

Emolument Policy

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group. Each director
may also receive a year-end bonus in respect of each financial
year. The amount of such bonus will be determined by the
remuneration committee of the Board, subject to shareholders’
approval at general meetings.

The emolument policy of the Group is on the basis of the
qualifications and contributions of individuals to the Group.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to eligible participants, details of which are set out
below in the section “Share Option Scheme”.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest
paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements, respectively.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions
of the Directors in the share capital of the Company and
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules adopted
by the Company, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shares”):

EERADARS - HERSG R
BENERRAXE

RZZE—NMFE+-A=+—H '  EFRAAA
BARARRB REERMBEEE(ERERESF M
HEGEA([RFRBERG ) EXVER) X HE
B REFS  HEARARAREES MAE K
156 362 1R A7 B 1) & i M AR B A 1 AR 48
B EMAR RIS+ P8 L BT AERETRE
HZRZPMEETAU(REFUNENE AR
Ko B 32 P (T B AT P 1) OB ORI AN TS

ARAEBER(TRE DHEFR

Percentage of

No. of the Company’s
Shares issued share
Interested capital
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest EEERN HARATE BT
BEEHA B EmtE BRoEA RAKWE D
Ms. Deng Shufen Interest of controlled corporation 2,261,473,889 55.41%
BOMZS 2+ SPEHIA AR R
Mr. Dai Yumin Interest of Spouse 2,261,473,889 55.41%
BEHLE [IEEEE s 2

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of
the directors of the Company or their respective associates
had registered any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code adopted by the Company.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2014, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following persons (other than the Directors of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company, being 5% or more of the
total issued share capital of the Company, as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

Report of the Directors
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FERRRHEMALTREQFR
2~ R0 K& &5 s KK

)E

RZZE—MF+_A=+—H BEZMH -
TZ?"J/\i(ﬁ"ﬁ%%ﬁ‘f\?l\)ﬁ’\ﬁ"ﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁ
MR EENERIAR (EARR TE%&GH&L
ZK“%%%&LAJ:)E.:E%?EAZK”AT/,ﬁEHF
KRB GBI 336 RFERNERLMA

Long position in the Shares: BREOWEFE
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
Shares issued share
Name of Capacity/Nature interested capital
Substantial Shareholders of interest EERERD HARATE BT
TERRER BE B REmtE R&OEA RAENEZ
Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited Beneficial owner 2,261,473,889 55.41%

(formerly known as Nat-Ace
Pharmaceutical Ltd.) (Note)

ERHEARAA Eniesd
GIEEVEE ﬁﬁﬁﬁ &) (#t:z)

Note: Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited is owned as to 60% by

Ms Deng Shufen, the Chairman and Executive Director of the
Company, 20% by Ms Liu Jiangyuan and 20% by Mr Gui Bin,
both being executive directors of the Company. Ms Deng
Shufen is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares
in which Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited is interested by
virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no person
(other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the
section “DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY” above) had registered an interest or a short
position in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded in the register of the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Kiat - ZEmHAEERAFTHARAZERRANTE
EER ST L LTHE B0 UEBBITERX
TREBEEEIARRANTES)SES
20% ° IRIBEFEFREEIEFIEXVE - BN
TTHWEBIEEERERHEFRARF
BraHROPHEAER -

BREXPHBEEEIN R_FT-—WEF+_-A

=t—H BMEAL(EESEREXESTR
ARBED - HERDRESFOHED AR

— I EERINRAR R MR HARBER D
BRAECEBCHRSIAREMAREESFEIHE
iR P15 336 RN AR RN E LA -
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Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”), which was approved by a written resolution of the
shareholders of the Company and adopted by the Board on
27 November 2009, for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group. The terms of the Scheme comply with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer option
(“Options”) to subscribe to such number of shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) in accordance with the terms set
out in the Scheme to any proposed or existing director,
manager or other employee of the Group; any shareholder
of the Company; any supplier of goods or services to the
Group; any customer, consultant, business or joint venture
partner, franchisee, contractor, or agent of any member of the
Group; any person or entity that provides design, research,
development or other support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of the Group;
and any associate of any of the foregoing persons.

The total number of securities available for issue under the
Scheme shall not exceed 60,000,000 Shares, being 10% of
total issued Shares as at the date of listing.

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 28 days from the date of offer.
The maximum entitlement of each participant shall not in any
12-month period exceed 1% of the Company’s issued share
capital from time to time.

The exercise price is determined based on the higher of (i)
the nominal value of the Shares; (i) the closing price of the
Shares on the date of offer; or (iii) the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer.
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Details of the Options outstanding as at 31 December 2014 RZEBE—WNFE+-_A=1+—8 " BEZTEH
RITENBREFBOT -

under the Scheme are as follows:

After

Before  completion

completion of the

of the  Open Offer

At Adjustment At Open Offer Exercise

1 Jan from the Lapsed 31 December Exercise price
2014 Open Offer during 2014 price NHRE Date of  Exercise
Name or category RZE-ME  DHBEN theyear RZE-ME DHBERR R grant  Period
of participant SHERERER -B-A #E EREAN TZREt-R 0 HZOFE g REBH TS

(HKS) (HKS)

(1) (1)
Continuous contract BEANES 986,349 497,711 (1.484,060) S HK$0.646 HK$0.429  26-3-2010 (Note)
employees BT BT (Wit
Other participate A2 mEER 867,120 437549 (1,304,669) S HK$0.646 HK$0.429  26-3-2010 (Note)
Consultants BT BT (Wi

1,863,469 935,260 (2,788,729 S

Note: Kiat -

All of the 2,788,729 share options were exercisable during the period 2,788,7291ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ$§iﬁﬂ%:;ﬁ—%¢ia:‘f'/‘_\ H
from 26 March 2013 to 25 March 2014 and were lapsed on 26 March :E:;E:EE:E :‘?'ﬁEl%@FaEJWfﬂ% CYER-E
2014. The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately —HFE=AZFRERR - BEREBEREN—H

before the date on which the share options were granted was AARBRDOETERE0.67ET

HK$0.67 per share.
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Share Options Under a Supply Chain
Management Agreement

On 11 August 2011, Perception Digital Technology (BVI)
Ltd. (“PDBVI”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a supply chain management agreement
(the “Supply Chain Agreement”) with Teleepoch Limited
(“Teleepoch”) pursuant to which PDBVI, together with its
subsidiaries, will act as the exclusive supply chain partner
of Teleepoch for a term of three years. In consideration of
Teleepoch entering into the Supply Chain Agreement, the
Company entered into an option agreement with Teleepoch,
pursuant to which the Company granted an option to
Teleepoch, entitling Teleepoch to subscribe for a maximum of
15,500,000 shares of the Company (the “Upfront Option”),
representing approximately 2.5% of the then existing issued
share capital of the Company, at the exercisable price of
HK$0.38 per share. The Upfront Option was vested on
11 November 2011 and is exercisable in whole or in part
during the period from 11 November 2011 to 10 August
2016. In 2013, the Company completed an open offer
whereby the exercise price and the number of shares that
may be subscribed under the Upfront Option were adjusted
to HK$0.351 and 16,800,450, respectively. In 2014, the
Company completed another open offer whereby the exercise
price and the number of shares that may be subscribed under
the Upfront Option were further adjusted to HK$0.233 and
25,277,957, respectively.

In addition to the Up Front Option, the Company also
conditionally granted to Teleepoch an option to subscribe for
0.285 shares of the Company (the “Performance Option”)
at the exercise price of HK$0.38 for every HK$1.0 of net
profit to the Company generated from sales orders placed
by the clients of Teleepoch (“Performance Benchmark”),
subject to a maximum of 46,750,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 7.5% of the then existing issued
share capital of the Company. On each anniversary date
during the term of the Supply Chain Management Agreement,
a portion of the Performance Option shall be vested and
become exercisable. The number of shares which Teleepoch
will be entitled to subscribe for pursuant to such vested
portion of the Performance Option shall be determined by
reference to the Performance Benchmark for the previous year
(the “Vesting Condition”). Subject to such Vesting Condition,
the Performance Option may be exercised in whole or in part
at any time during the period from 11 August 2012 to 10
August 2016. In 2013, the Company completed an open offer
whereby the exercise price and the number of shares that
may be subscribed under the Performance Option, subject
to the Vesting Condition, were adjusted to HK$0.351 and
50,672,325, respectively. In 2014, the Company completed
another open offer whereby the exercise price and the number
of shares that may be subscribed under the Performance
Option, subject to the Vesting Condition, were further adjusted
to HK$0.233 and 76,241,580, respectively.
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Further details of the Upfront Option and Performance Option
are set out in note 30(b) to the financial statements.

Warrants

The subscription price of the outstanding warrants was
adjusted from HK$0.23 per share to HK$0.14 per share as a
result of the Open Offer. Details of which are set out in the

announcement dated 24 January 2014.

The subscription price of the outstanding warrants was further
adjusted from HK$0.14 per share to HK$0.12 per share as a
result of the completion of the Placing. Details of which are
set out in the announcement dated 20 November 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the subscription price of the
outstanding 140,062,500 warrants would be HK$0.12 per
share.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than option holdings disclosed above, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 29 to 40 of this
annual report.
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Auditors

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been audited by Ernst & Young, the auditors of
the Company. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst
& Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. There has been no
change in the auditors of the Company in any of the preceding
years since the Listing.

On behalf of the Board

Ms. Deng Shufen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report

e
EY =i

To the shareholders of Perception Digital Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Perception Digital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
56 to 198, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

VR GRS
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

20 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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Year ended 31 December 2014
BE_ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HI&FE

2014 2013
—E—-mF —E—=
Notes HK$ HK$
F 5 BT BT
REVENUE W 25 5 222,255,924 200,022,317
Cost of sales SHE AR (205,345,437) (179,396,792)
Gross profit EF 16,910,487 20,625,525
Other income and gains H U A Rz 5 8,008,214 1,067,008
Research and development costs i ¢ M B B Ak AR 7 (2,618,224) (5,125,959)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (14,613,513)  (12,729,657)
General and administrative expenses —BRITHER (25,413,974)  (19,385,288)
Other expenses, net H A F5E (26,033,043)  (42,893,891)
Finance costs BhE K AR 6 (118,608) (6,853,092
Share of loss of a joint venture B —REE QRSB (2,154,466) =
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRELAIE IR 7 (46,033,127)  (65,295,354)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrERiEe, (B) 10 (3,551,925) 64,217
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FRER (49,585,052)  (65,231,137)
Attributable to: AT & 75 FEMG -
Owners of the parent ISINEIEZ TN 11 (49,585,052) (65,231,137)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BAREERBREFEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EEERER HK cents HK cents
OF THE PARENT 12 AL P AL
Basic and diluted ERREE HK(1.8) cents HK(4.8) cents
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
SEREWAR

Year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-—NF+-_A=1t—HItFE

2014 2013
—E-ImF =%
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (49,585,052) (65,231,137)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HhZmEBA
Other comprehensive income to be FREAKEY BBEEH
reclassified to profit or loss Hib2mEUA
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of BMERINRIEHIE R =5
foreign operations 80,397 235,504
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FRXEEBHEARE
THE YEAR (49,504,655) (64,995,633)
Attributable to: AT %75 FEAS -
Owners of the parent NI PN (49,504,655)  (64,995,633)

Perception Digital Holdings Limited 4] % (5% R E R A 5



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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31 December 2014
—E-mE+-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—-UE —F—=
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MR 13 32,684,920 3,835,136
Goodwill SRS 14 72,383,420 =
Investment in a joint venture BER—KREEQT 16 7,845,534 -
Deferred development costs R HE A 32 AR AR 17 2,498,264 18,123,387
Long term deposits %S 20 6,166,396 172,228
Deferred tax assets RIEFIBE E 28 - 2,406,665
Total non-current assets FEREBEERE 121,578,534 24,537,416
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18 2,479,162 4,188,240
Trade receivables JEULBR 5k 19 212,973,874 85,489,602
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFRIE - e MEAM
receivables G 20 79,312,367 8,599,496
Amount due from a joint venture B —REERQRIFIA 16 5,842,767 -
Available-for-sale investment Al EERE 22 1,260,000 =
Pledged bank deposits EEBIRITF 23 - 6,018,550
Cash and cash equivalents BehkBE2EEY 23 8,090,982 26,139,149
Total current assets MEEERE 309,959,152 130,435,037
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables JEIST BR X 24 34,801,378 85,274,587
Other payables and accruals F A 5 R0 I BB AT RIE 25 78,488,115 10,846,371
Interest-bearing other borrowings STEEMEE 26 8,386,341 31,330,795
Tax payable FES IR 2,609,609 868,537
Provision BiE 27 - 672,700
Total current liabilities mENBERTE 124,285,443 128,992,990
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 185,673,709 1,442,047
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT WEERARBERE
LIABILITIES 307,252,243 25,979,463
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE B R 3R

31 December 2014

—T-WFE+=RA=+—H

2014 2013
—E-MF ===

Notes HK$ HK$
b= BT BT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE

Interest-bearing other borrowings TEEMEER 26 5,311,104 12,300,000

Net assets BEFE 301,941,139 13,679,463

EQUITY s

Equity attributable to owners of the R RATEE AEIGEZ

parent

Issued capital BEITIRA 29 40,813,750 112,050,000

Reserves i 31(a) 261,127,389  (98,370,537)

Total equity = %R 301,941,139 13,679,463

Deng Shufen
507 823
Director

EFE

Dai Yumin
HES
Director

EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n‘/T\ *E'T t B Eb 'I%

Year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-—NF+-_A=1t—HItFE

Share Share  Exchange
Issued premium Capital Warrant option fluctuation Accumulated Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve losses equity
BRfRA  ROEER  EARE AREREE ERERE EXRBRE  ZHFB LiEs
Notes HKS HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS
if:: AT BT B AT BT i BT BT
(note 31(a)) note 29) (note 30)

(
(WeEsf)  (WE20)  (MiEEd0)

At 1 January 2013 R-E-=£-f-A 62,250,000 43,490,307 43,823,276 7,048,243 3,093,539 2,549,044 (153,461,375) 8,793,534
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - (65281,187) (65,231,137)
Other comprefensive EREMZENE
income for the year:
Exchange differences BNEBNER
on translation of EE
foreign operations = = = = = 235,504 = 235,504
Total comprehensive FrzEks/ (B8)
income/(loss) %
for the year - - - - - 235,504 (66,231,137)  (64,995,633)
Issue of shares ki 2 49,800,000 23,094,750 = = = = - 72894750
Share issue expenses RkEAER 29 - (2553168 - - - - - (2553168)
Fauity-settled share RE£EBRER:
option arrangements 30 - - - - (460,020) - - (460,020)
Transfer of share option ~ BRIE(EESERE
feserve Upon the BRERERR
forfeiture or expiry of
share options - - - - (773,990) - 773,990 -
31 December 2013 and A =E-=
at 1 January 2014 Jr:ﬂ?r BR
“F-mE-A-A 112,050,000 64,031,889+ 43,823,276+ 7,048,243  1,859,529*  2,785,048* (217,918,522)* 13,679,463
Loss for the year EfEE - - - - - - (49,585,052) (49,585,052)
Other comprehensive EREMZENS
income for the year:
Exchange differences  SEAERMER
on translation of £
foreign operations - - - - - 80,397 - 80,397
Total comprehensive EnzEkE/ (B8)
income/(loss) %
for the year - - - - - 80,397  (49,585,052)  (49,504,655)
Capital reduction Bl R 29 (100,845,000) - - - - - 100,845,000 -
ISsue of shares Bl 29 20,608,750 316,155,450 - - - - - 345,764,200
Share issue expenses OESRE-Gi 2 - (7,997,869) - - = = - (7,007,869)
Transfer of share option ~~ BRIEERE
reserve upon the ERERERE
expiry of share options - - - - (54,429) - 54,429 -
At31 December 2014 HZF-RE
+-A=1-H 40,813,750 372,189,470 43,823,276+  7,048243*  1,805,100*  2,865,445* (166,604,145 301,941,139
il These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * ZEREBEREERGZATBERARANNLES
of HK$261,127,389 (2013: consolidated negative reserves BEMFE261,127,389B L (—FT—=F : 4%
of HK$98,370,537) in the consolidated statement of financial A BF##98,370,537 BIL) °

position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

an\

IE@/JILE%‘:Z

Year ended 31 December 2014

BE-_ZT-—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE
2014 2013
—E—E —F—=fF
Notes HK$ HK$
s BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax (E300%: 00 5Ei! (46,033,127)  (65,295,354)
Adjustments for: LA B IR
Finance costs BLE R 6 118,608 6,853,092
Share of loss of a joint venture Bl —KEE N rER 2,154,466 =
Interest income F B WA 5 (272,972) (252,605)
Waivers of other borrowings WEEMEE 5 (1,883,536) -
Depreciation e 7 3,351,508 3,165,029
Amortisation of deferred development i R 7 B R AN 8 6
costs 7 10,681,435 19,096,012
Impairment of items of property, Mz - WE R
plant and equipment HEIEBRE 7 - 149,250
Impairment/write-off of deferred EIER K ARE,
development costs b€ 7 4,883,863 3,081,449
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEME  BER
property, plant and equipment, BREEENEES
net (Wezs ) 88 7 (107,040) 116,344
Impairment of trade receivables AR RZURE 7 11,869,599 18,495,805
Impairment of other receivables H fth fE YR IR R (E 7 5,426,590 20,184,795
Write-down of inventories to net WO TF & = A 3R
realisable value, net FEFRE 7 1,871,685 13,358,278
Gain on transfer arising from factoring IRIE FE U BR SR 5| B
of trade receivables bt g 7 - (29,201)
Loss on early repayment of an other REEE—IBHEM
borrowing BEREE 7 3,852,740 895,449
Reversal of equity-settled share option % (O] {% 4 45 E BB AR A
expense, net X R ER 30 - (460,020)
(4,086,181) 19,358,323
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL S (3Eh) (155,412) 9,068,812

Increase in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,

P& Y5 Pl R
BNFIA - ke AR

(138,254,486)

(25,034,123)

deposits and other receivables WRIE R A (38 h0) (73,255,415) 4,850,882
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERHBRFRIE N, R ) (52,457,132) 870,908
Decrease in other payables and accruals  E fib &~ 308 & JE 5T 7R

NERan (5,521,239) (1,207,188)
Decrease in provision BERL (672,700) (304,331)
Cash generated from/(used in) mEEEATS,(FTH)

operations & (274,402,565) 7,603,283
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EERERBNEN — 1,390,035
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating &4 &S, (FTA)

activities e mEFHE (274,402,565) 8,993,318
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN A —|
%Fczﬂaézuwgi%ﬁ
Year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-—NF+-_A=1t—HItFE

2014 2013
—E2-IF —E—=F
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5E BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Increase in deposits for purchases of BEWE  WELXRE
items of property, plant and equipment T B R4 1 N - (10,500)
Purchases of items of property, plant BEYWE BEX
and equipment RBIEE (5,857,356) (57,740)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  BER&E
property, plant and equipment 18 B KPS 58 952,616 559,999
Additions to deferred development costs 3 iE B 3% Ak 2N 38 N - (6,030,630)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — KM B AR 32 (19,278,076) —
Capital contribution to a joint venture H—REERAINEREA (10,000,000) —
Increase in an amount due from a JEM—RE & R RIFRIAIE N
joint venture (5,842,767) —
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAIHEERE
investments (1,827,000) —
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- HERHEERERFTE
sale investments FIE 567,000 =
Decrease in pledged bank deposits AR ERITI7 OB 6,018,550 10,176,937
Interest received 2B 272,972 252,605
Net cash flows from/(used in) wEESE(FTA)
investing activities REemE T (34,994,061) 4,890,671
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D FT1S RUIE 29 345,764,200 72,894,750
Share issue expenses [&1nE1TE B 29 (7,997,869) (2,553,168)
New other borrowings EEMEER - 12,000,000
Repayment of other borrowings* EEEMEE (46,295,631)  (16,000,000)
New bank loans FTILIRITE X — 157,733,878
Repayment of bank loans EERITER — (239,564,372)
Interest and bank charges paid BEAF B RIRITHE (118,608) (3,857,957)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEEAE,(FTH)
financing activities WEmEFHE 291,352,092  (19,346,869)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

an\ IE:@/)HJE%E

Year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-—NF+-_A=1t—HItFE

2014 2013
—E—E = ==%
Notes HK$ HK$
I aE BT BT
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RE&RHEEZEY
EQUIVALENTS A EEE (18,044,534) (5,462,880)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E41384 MRS HEY
of year 26,139,149 31,592,964
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [ERE S5 2 %%
net (3,633) 9,065
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT HSX&BRERKREZEY
END OF YEAR 8,090,982 26,139,149
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HRE&RBELESEYES
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Pk
Cash and bank balances Be MIR1TH 23 8,090,982 12,439,149
Non-pledged time deposits with original — JEER A R Z| & EI =
maturity of less than three months = {E A &y R
when acquired TE HR 17 5K - 13,700,000
23 8,090,982 26,139,149

*

Notes:

Including cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding
liabilities relating to arrangements which are in substance
finance leases.

As disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, the
Group acquired the entire equity interest in Gigantic
Wisdom Limited and its operating subsidiary, 1t & & % 5
HHREAREMERLQTF, for a total purchase consideration of
RMB65,000,000 (equivalent to HK$81,400,477). Part of the
purchase consideration of HK$20,350,942 was paid at the
acquisition date and the remaining purchase consideration of
HK$61,049,505 was included in other payables and accruals
as at 31 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group obtained
the waivers of the remaining outstanding principal and interest
accrued of certain other borrowings, and, accordingly, the
related balances brought forward from the prior year of
HK$1,883,536 was included in other income and gains in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the current year
(2013: Nil).

a%ﬁf’ﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁéﬁf%ﬁﬁﬂé fE B 2 B 1E
MARBERBEZRESMNK

BN EF B MKRMERMBFE - AEER
WELRRLZ ABHEERETIRARZEH
o BEEREARG5,000,0007T (48
£ 81,400,477 7T) + RNUEE A AR B
20,350,942 7T * MBI AR AREBH 2 BERE
61,049,506 BTN —E—WFE+=-A=+—
H 25 A H b B 5108 K 5T 7 0E

BHE-_Z-—NF+_A=+—HLFE &
SEEREETHMEEMEEZHTMA
BERERFE - i AEEE &R ZHE
B 45 #: 1,883,536 B L E T ARFEBEE
Az EMBRARKR(—T—=4: &) -

Perception Digital Holdings Limited 4] % (5% R E R A 5



Statement of Financial
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Year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-—NF+-_A=1t—HItFE

Position

2014 2013
—E—-mF —E—=F
Notes HK$ HK$
MIRE BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries KB A 7 R RE 15 65 22,642,740
CURRENT ASSETS nEBEE
Prepayments SENE 20 36,727 13,949
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UL B /2B A B FRIE 15 301,565,525 11,527,373
Amount due from a joint venture BU—REZLR —J/TJ\IE\ 16 5,728,464 =
Cash and cash equivalents BehE2EEY 23 3,188,006 24,272 684
Total current assets MENEELRE 310,518,722 35,814,006
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEST BT 8 A B 3kI8 15 40 =
Other payables and accruals E@Fﬁmlﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁlﬁ 25 198,614 979,824
Interest-bearing other borrowing SEEHMEE 26 - 31,330,795
Total current liabilities mEBERRE 198,654 32,310,619
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZFE 310,320,068 3,503,387
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBARS
LIABILITIES 310,320,133 26,146,127
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREBEE
Interest-bearing other borrowing STEAEMEE 26 — 12,300,000
Net assets BEFE 310,320,133 13,846,127
EQUITY =
Issued capital 2 31T AR 29 40,813,750 112,050,000
Reserves s 31(b) 269,506,383 (98,203,873)
Total equity AR 310,320,133 13,846,127
Deng Shufen Dai Yumin
ki B2 HES
Director Director
EBZE EZE
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Perception Digital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong is located at Suites 3101-3105, 31/F, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) was primarily
involved in the provision for car rental services; the
trading of electronic components/materials; and the
research, design, development and sale of digital signal
processing (“DSP”) based consumer electronic devices/
platforms, including embedded firmware, and the
provision of solutions/services to customers for their
DSP-based consumer electronic devices/platforms.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance relating to the preparation
of financial statements, which for this financial year
and the comparative period continue to be those of
the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and saving
arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which
are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that
ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for an
available-for-sale investment which has been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars.

2.1

R ES e

31 December 2014
—T—WFE+=—RA=+—H

NAEH

ABHBERBRAB(ARRE R
—ARFASHETMRKINER AR -
AN A 7 E R A M3k 7 Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands - ZAGEEBHNEE
EEMBURNBEBEF S LITBE1085%
RETERF L 31E3101-3105 % ©

FAR ARAIREWERR(FENA
SEDIEREREAEHERY : B
EEFEMN /MHE ERBLERERE
(IDSPHHHEEFHM " TA(RE
BRAXE M)WK - Rat - AERE
S URAEPRHBEEER DSPHIH
BETRMTENBRARRY -

mBERE

AU BHREDNBRBESESHMAGEM
ZEAMBREEN((EAMBRELE
D (REMEREMEHREER - B
SHEA([EE S ER I REZB)RE
BRARETRAUNZEBHREMRER - &
B 7 RS I A B8 A alE 5 22 4R 2L 8T
BMEEENBERAERZRUZHINE
BERRMEN(F6228 )M R11E76 2
87X NBEE ISR B RE A
BEMRRBLE  AMBREERLE
HE MRS EERBERAOAES
NEMEBI(EIR2E ) MIELHKE) - KAl
HEERERAFETEN A BER
ETRBELEAERR - NPBRE
ABITT2S -
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2014
—E-mE+-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% S 2 B

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
and new interpretation for the first time for the current

year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Amendment to HKFRS 2 included
in Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 3 included
in Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 13 included
in Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 1 included
in Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Investment Entities

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-

Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting

Levies

Definition of Vesting Condition'

Accounting for Contingent Consideration

in a Business Combination’

Short-term Receivables and Payables

Meaning of Effective HKFRSs

! Effective from 1 July 2014

The adoption of the above revised standards and
interpretation has had no significant financial effect on

the current year’s financial statements.

31 December 2014

—T—WFE+=—RA=+—H

2.2 EFHERRBECEE

AREBTBERECNRAFEE B RN
TRIEFTERI N —IRFRRE

ERMBASERF0
i BEHBREER

Z12% R EAGE

FOTH(ZF——HF)
BT

BB GRS 2RET

BB EAF 0 RE

B ERF 0RET

AH (AR BAEREE
828)- RBEAR

ERMBREENZ 2N
BIBER - F-F%
PoE-CEEHF
EH#

BEMBERELENZIN
BiIRER-F-F
i kg
Ek#

BRNBREENE 135
BiaREN-—F-FF
BoE-—FEHF
B

ERMBREENZ 1R
BIRER-F—%
FoF-CHFEHE
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2014
—E-WFE+=A=+—H

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
AND NEW DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011)

Annual Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Annual Improvements 2011-2013
Cycle

Annual Improvements 2012-2014
Cycle
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Financial Instruments*
Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception”

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations”

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Disclosure Initiative®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions'

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs"

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs"

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs?
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

AND NEW DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

(continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018

° Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its
annual financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the
Group

2

Except for those amendments detailed in note 2.2
above.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) will affect the presentation and disclosure
of certain information in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2015. The
Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these changes
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of the joint venture is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in the
joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of the joint venture
is included as part of the Group’s investment in a joint
venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
If the contingent consideration is not within the scope
of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its an available-for-sale investment
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the

Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

(viij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Annual Report 2014 ==

— M FFIR

24 FEEHHEHME )

BRE AL+ (&)

(0)

ZALTRERMT A THIEMR—
M (&)

v)

(vil)

ZEBAAKEREALRE
EERENERNERT
AR HY — TR KR

Ny

<

A (a)(i) FT 8% B A = % 3%
BEKRE "“7]&7%5
(HZEBNER
ERAER

- ‘m}

i
a3 EIQ 28

%
a)E

i

W

MK BERRBEUARFTE

Y% BB KR BRARARRETITEM
ERERBERIE - —BYE  BER
REZKABREEBEERERNSEE
EHRFT RSB RERRUEE
EHEREARA



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to

write off the cost of each item of property, plant and

equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and 25% to 33'/,%
office equipment

Machinery and equipment 25%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 25%

Toolings 50%

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset
will generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding three years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production or when the intangible assets are available
for use.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks incidental to ownership of assets to the Group are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments
and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and
financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases
are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs
of such leases are charged to the statement of profit or
loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and receivables and available-for-sale
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation and the loss arising from
impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in
this category are those which are intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss in
other gains or losses. Interest earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as
interest income and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss
— is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for
sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future
interest income continues to be accrued based on the
reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance
income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the statement of profit or loss if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in the statement of
profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2014
—E-mE+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to the statement of profit or loss
by way of a reduced deprecation charge.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2014
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a)

from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold. Sale
and subsequent purchase of inventories with
the same counterparty that are entered into in
contemplation of one another are considered
to be a single non-monetary transaction. As
such, revenue is not recognised for sale of
inventories to the counterparty under such type
of transaction;

from the rendering of services, when the
corresponding services are rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received

in advance of the rendering of the relevant services.

Deferred revenue is released to profit or loss when the

corresponding services have been rendered.

Annual Report 2014 == — [UF F 5§

24 FEEHHEHME )

(@) HEE®ME ZERBAAENEKR
REkOREBBEET - AR
AEEIBHE - RESEES
BEENEEEIHDES A
BRI RS R R o B[R —
HBFETHERERERBHERBE
ENRER—BE-—NIFSER
5 it REZBXHFRX S
HFHEFEL TR S WS

b) BRHERBAEZIEA  EZR
?‘%E}%E'f/\ Sl

) MEEWRA REEHANZERELL
IEE &

(d  FBWA - AEFHIAEFHT
Az FHARENEMES
) RBEBRMFOER Bt 2 RK
BEWATREFBHBEEZFEE
HE

I SE WA

i FE U A 15 51 4 (A0 B8 IR 75 TR M 2 IR 75
g - B AEREEBRSGRES R



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants (including directors, employees and
consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries) who
render services and/or contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) and
consultants of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees/
consultants render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/
or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit
expense. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employees/consultants as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period
is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following period. An accrual
is made at the end of each reporting period for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during
the period by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that foreign operation
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the Group’s subsidiaries of
which their functional currencies are currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollar are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of these entities which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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—E-mE+-A=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Judgements (continued)
Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency transactions in
the respective functional currencies of the Company
and its subsidiaries. In determining the functional
currency of each entity of the Group, judgement is
required to determine and consider the currency that
mainly influences sales prices of goods and services
and of the country/jurisdiction whose competitive forces
and regulations mainly determines the sales prices of
goods and services; the currency that mainly influences
labour, materials and other costs of providing goods
or services; the currency in which funds from financing
activities are generated; and the currency in which
receipts from operating activities are usually retained.
The functional currency of each entity of the Group is
determined based on management’'s assessment of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates. When the indicators are mixed and the
functional currency is not obvious, management uses
its judgement to determine the functional currency that
most faithfully represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised and deferred in
accordance with the accounting policy for research
and development costs as set out in note 2.4 to the
financial statements. Initial capitalisation of costs is
based on management’s judgement that the Group
can demonstrate the technological and economical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale, usually when a product
development project has reached a defined milestone
according to an established project management model.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Judgements (continued)
Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in
determining the provision for income taxes. Determining
income tax provisions involves judgement on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions and interpretation
of tax rules/tax laws. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions/arrangements and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment
of such transactions/arrangements is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Finance lease arrangements

The Group has entered into certain arrangements
(including sale and leaseback arrangements) with a
leasing company to finance it purchases of certain
motor vehicles for its car rental business. The Group
evaluated the terms and conditions of the arrangements
and assessed that the arrangements transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the motor vehicles to the Group and so
accounts for the arrangements as finance leases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a loan/receivable is impaired. To determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group
considers factors such as the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
default or significant delay in payments. Where there
is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and
timing of future cash flows are estimated based on,
inter alia, historical loss experience for assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and/or other relevant
facts and circumstances.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated
impairment of receivables arising from the inability
of its debtors to make the required payments or if
the preserve value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred) is less than the financial assets carrying
amount. The Group makes its estimates based on, inter
alia, the ageing of its receivable balances, debtors’
creditworthiness, past repayment history and historical
write-off experience and/or other relevant facts and
circumstances. If the financial condition of its debtors
was to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss
might be higher than expected, the Group would be
required to revise the basis/assumptions/estimates of
making the allowance.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details are given in note 14 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Non-financial assets with
finite useful lives are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged analyses
of the Group’s inventories, projections of expected
future saleability of goods, changes in technological,
market, economic and business conditions and
management experience and judgement. Based on this
review, write-down of inventories will be made when
the carrying amounts of inventories decline below
their estimated net realisable value. Due to changes in
technological, market and economic environment and
customers’ preference, actual saleability of goods may
be different from estimation and profit or loss could be
affected by differences in this estimation.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. Recognition of deferred tax
assets primarily involves management judgement
and estimations regarding the future taxable profits
of the entities in which the losses arose. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Further details are contained in note 28 to the financial
statements.
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31 December 2014
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs as set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
Determining the development costs to be capitalised
requires management to make significant assumptions
and estimates regarding the expected future economic
benefits of the assets and the expected period of
benefits.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
economic useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment. Management estimates the useful lives of
the property, plant and equipment to be two to five
years or over the shorter of the lease terms and four
years for leasehold improvements. Changes in the
expected level of usage, technological developments
and/or the period over which future economic benefits
are generated could impact the economic useful lives of
the assets and, therefore, future depreciation charges
could be revised.

Useful lives of deferred development costs

Management determines the estimated useful lives
of the Group’s deferred development costs for the
calculation of amortisation of deferred development
costs. This estimate is determined after considering
the expected period in which economic benefits can
be generated from the development projects/products/
assets in which the deferred development costs relate
to. Management reviews the estimated useful lives on
an annual basis and future amortisation charges are
adjusted where management believes the useful lives
differ from previous estimates.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for warranties

The Group makes provisions for the warranties granted
on sale of products taking into account the Group’s
historical claim experience. The assessment of provision
amount involves management’s judgements and
estimates in relation to the costs to repair or replace
defective products, including labour and material costs,
and costs that may not be recoverable from suppliers,
either in accordance with contractual terms or the
Group’s policy. As the Group is continually upgrading
its product designs and launching new models, it is
possible that the historical claim experience is not
indicative of future claims that the Group will receive
in respect of past sales. Where the actual outcome
or expectation in future is different from the original
estimates, the difference will impact the carrying amount
of the provision for warranties and the provision amount
charged/reversed in the period in which such estimates
have been changed.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services
and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Car rental segment — primarily engages in the
provision of car rental services;

(b) Electronic components/materials segment —
primarily engages in the trading of electronic
components/materials; and

(c) Consumer electronic devices/platforms and
related solutions/services segment — primarily
engages in the research, design, development
and sale of DSP-based consumer electronic
devices/platforms, including embedded firmware,
and the provision of solutions/services to
customers for their DSP-based consumer
electronic devices/platforms.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s loss before tax except
that unallocated interest income, unallocated other
income and gains, unallocated finance costs as well
as corporate and other unallocated expenses, and
share of loss of a joint venture are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and
cash equivalents, an available-for-sale investment and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis, as well as
investment in a joint venture.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

4, RESFER®

Segment liabilities exclude certain interest-bearing other PHEEETEERXLGTEEMERS &
borrowings, tax payable and other unallocated head ANHEBREM I BEARNDESA
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are & EAaLmadEUERABMNER o
managed on a group basis.
Consumer
Electronic components/  electronic devices/platforms
Car rental materials and related solutions/services Total
BENEETEN/TA
RERE E784/iH REBBARE/ BE i
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZB-pF 3= ZE-BE C3-=F  ZE-mE “R-=F  ZE-pF C5-=F
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
A AT A AT A AT En AT
Segment revenue: RN
Sales of goods HERR - - 193475798 1978094 11,590,373 191,535,660 205,066,171 193,513,754
Rendering of services BURE - - - - 1655212 630853 1655212 6508563
Car rental income AEREUA 664,481 - - - - = 664,481 -
664,481 - 193475798 1978094 28,115,645 198,044223 222,255,924 200,022,317
Segment results SEEE 95,42 - GMET5 (2000789 (3T52T861) (760734 (30686,690) (60517,129)
Reconcliation: HE:
Unallocated interest income FABAISHA M9 213,15
Unallocated other income and gains AEEBUA RS 6,432,614 -
Corporate and other unallocated expenses PEREMASERS (19,804,125) (1,899,054
Unallocated finance costs AMBRENA (93,432 (3,092,331)
Share of loss of a joint venture Efi-FA%DAZER (2,154,466) a
Loss before tax i (46,033,127)  (65,295,354)
Segment assets PREE 107,531,740 - 193,195,912 297,191 30,367,915 126,115,499 331,095,567 126,412,690
Reconciiation: HE:
Corporate and other unallocated assets PERAMAHEEE 100,442,119 28,559,763
Total assets BEBE 431,537,686 154,972,453
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31 December 2014
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. REFFERW
INFORMATION (continued)
Consumer
Electronic components/  electronic devices/platforms
Car rental materials and related solutions/services Total
BENERTEN/TA
hEkg 2734 /18 REBBARE/ BE it
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZR-m§ "%z ZR-BE C5-ZF Z%-BE CE-ZF ZR-PF TR
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B AT E AT B BT E AT
Segment liabilities AERE 88,231,869 = 11,429 - 36,739,858 95008834 124,983,151 95,058,834
Reconcilation: 85
Corporate and other unallocated liabites PEREMFIBRE 4,613,306 46,234,156
Total liabilties BESE 129,596,547 141,292,990
Other segment information: HpEEN
Interest income LN - - - - - 39451 - 30,451
Finance costs BERE 25,176 - - - - 360,761 %5176 3,760,761
Impairment of items of property, plant % BEREEAE
and equipment - - - - - 149,250 - 149,250
Impairment/write-off of deferred development costs  EEFRAARE/H# - - - - 40883863 3081449 4883863 3081449
Impairment of trade receivables BRI - - - - 11,869,599 18495805 11,869,599 18,495,805
Impairment of other recelvables AtENFERE - - - - 5426500 20184795 5426500 20,184,795
Writs-down of inventories to net realisable value, net #FEHEZAERZE 58 - - - 3008334 1871685  10,349.944 1,871,685 13,358,278
Depreciation ik 263,014 - - - 2262258 3165029 2525212 3,165,029
Amortisation of deferred development costs BRETRERE - - - - 10681435 19,096,012 10,681,435 19,096,012
Capital expenditure’ BRHEY 27,369,319 = - = - 20790 27,369,319 240790

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,
plant and equipment, including property, plant and
equipment from the acquisition of a subsidiary.
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31 December 2014
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OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BEITHERW®
INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information ih & & K
The following tables present revenue from external TREVWEWRENEE-—Z—NEK
customers for the years ended 31 December 2014 and —E—=F+_A=+—HIEFEEKX
2013, and certain non-current assets information as at BINSEFPHKE  UERZZ—
31 December 2014 and 2013, by geographical areas. F+A=t+—BRZZE—=F+=A
=T —HETHERDEENER -
United
European States of Mainland Hong
Union America China Kong Others Total
ERR
BB R £RE  HERYE B Ht o
HK$ HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS$
B B BT B BT B
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE_E-METCA=1-H
LEE
Revenue from external customers RENIZP 2 173,044 8924261 205532,768 6,009,410 1,616,441 222,255,024
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-Z-=5{+-B=1-H
12:3:54
Revenue from external customers RENDEP 2 i 97314968 44880321 16,670,866 15,952,279 25203883 200,022,317
As at 31 December 2014 RZF-BE+ZA=+-A
Non-current assets (excluding FnBEE(TAEELHERE)
deferred tax assets) - - 104,976,585 16,601,949 - 121,578,534
Non-current assets (excluding financial ~ JFEBEE(TRELBIARE
instruments and deferred tax assets) EREEE) - - 100,541,133 14,881,505 - 115,422,638
As at 31 December 2013 R-8-ZE+ZA=1-H
Non-current assets (excluding FRHEE(TAEELHERE)
deferred tax assets) - - 8,172,125 13,958,626 - 22,130,751
Non-current assets (excluding financial ~ RBEE(TEHEEBIAR
instruments and deferred tax assets) REHBEE) - - 8172125 13,796,898 - 21,969,023
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information (continued)

The Group’s revenue information by geographical
areas is based on the destination where the goods are
delivered, except for revenue arising from the rendering
of services, which is based on the locations where the
customers are domiciled/located. The Group’s non-
current assets information by geographical areas is
based on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenues of HK$132.4 million and HK$60.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014 were derived from
the electronic components/materials segment with two
customers, which individually amounted to 10 per cent
or more of the Group’s total revenue for the current
year. Revenue of HK$148.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2013 was derived from the consumer
electronic devices/platforms and related solutions/
services segment with one customer, which amounted
to 10 per cent or more of the Group’s total revenue for
the prior year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances
for returns and trade discounts; and the value of car
rental and other services rendered during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as

5.

B 7% S 2 B

31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

Wz & 2 A

Wat - MEIASERZRE - HFAH
BREELRESTMENEEEMmMESR
FE RERHIEHEREMBRE 2
BfE -

Yas ~ WA REEIHTNT

follows:
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
Revenue Wz
Sale of goods HEEm 205,066,171 193,513,754
Rendering of services R AR 16,525,272 6,508,563
Car rental income AEAEWA 664,481 -
222,255,924 200,022,317
Other income and gains Ha AR W&
Bank interest income HRITABUA 272,972 252,605
Government subsidies BT & 5,040 3,786
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME  BMERZHEEE
plant and equipment, net ZWEs - HEE 107,040 =
Gross rental income from a sublease DL HE WA LR
arrangement 733,138 577,826
Income in relation to certain BRAETRE 28482
procurement/credit arrangements N 4,549,078 =
Waivers of other borrowings WMEEMEER 1,883,536 =
Others HAtb 457,410 232,791
8,008,214 1,067,008
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6. FINANCE COSTS 6. mMEMRAK
2014 2013
—E-mE —FT—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and ARAFANEREEENRIT
other borrowings wholly repayable BE EIXREMEERN
within five years* B~ 25,176 5,260,127
Bank charges RITFES 93,432 653,590
Other finance costs on trade receivables {12 fE UL BRE X H) H gt &
factored: BN
Bank interest HRITH B - 636,643
Bank charges WITFEE - 302,732
118,608 6,853,092
* Amount reflecting waivers of interest on other * RMBEEMEEAFENESEA
borrowings of HK$742,876 (2013: HK$499,726) for the 742,876 7L(= T — = 4F : 490,72638
year. JL) °
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31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

LOSS BEFORE TAX 7. BRBAIEE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBBBABERBE NG, GEFA)UT
(crediting): £ IF -
Group
583
2014 2013
—E-ImF —T—=fF
Notes HK$ HK$
e BT BT
Cost of inventories sold and HEFE RIRHREE KA
services rendered 205,345,437 179,396,792
Depreciation” wE" 13 3,351,508 3,165,029
Research and development costs: #f5% & F BN ¢
Deferred expenditure amortised” B 5ELTEH %" 17 10,681,435 19,096,012
Current year expenditure™” AEFERAL™ 2,618,224 5,125,959

13,299,659 24,221,971

Minimum lease payments under KEMRER T o &EHRE

operating leases: IR
Land and buildings T RIEF 2,514,511 1,799,654
Office equipment MAEERAM 83,200 110,043
Motor vehicles” RE 417,882 120,000
3,015,593 2,029,697
Auditors’ remuneration for audit Z BB SR AZ SRS BN 2
services 1,100,000 780,000
Employee benefit expense EERFAMAXZ
(including directors’ (BREESZHM
remuneration (note 8)): (KF3E8)) -
Wages, salaries, allowances, TE - &% 28 -
bonuses and benefits in kind TEAL R B YA 13,616,486 16,080,299
Termination benefits I EFERET 107,352 3,714,468
Reversal of equity-settled share T8 [0 P e 4 O T A
option expense, net S5 - (460,020)
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIH R
(defined contribution (ErptEeta) ™
schemes)™ 314,048 1,207,763
14,037,886 20,542,510
Less: Amount capitalised B BERAERNEEE — (6,030,630)

14,037,886 14,511,880
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7.

LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 7.

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): (continued)

BR 4 A0 B 18 (8)

AEEBRBABRENR GEART

&1/ (&)

Group
55
2014 2013
—E-0F —ZT—=%F
Notes HK$ HK$
Ffd 5 BT BT
Foreign exchange differences, net [E 5 =58 %48 (160,956) (198,430)
Government subsidies” BFmee’ (5,040) (3,786)
Impairment of items of property, ME - WEK
plant and equipment* HEIEE RE 13 - 149,250
Impairment/write-off of deferred EEF B AN RVE
development costs* e t-N 17 4,883,863 3,081,449
Impairment of trade receivables* U ER ZOR{E * 19 11,869,599 18,495,805
Impairment of other receivables* i & I R IE (A * 20 5,426,590 20,184,795
Loss on early repayment of an REEE—E
other borrowing* H g E #0518 3,852,740 895,449
Write-down of inventories to net i1 & & Al & 1R F(E -
realisable value, net” R 1,871,685 13,358,278
Gain on transfer arising from RIBREWBE N EE v EE
factoring of trade receivables* W * - (29,201)
Product warranty provision EmRAEE 27 8,000 794,730
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWZE - BE&RBE
property, plant and equipment, net BEE, (e ) F58 (107,040) 116,344*
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Notes to Financial Statements

7. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

AN

##

The impairment of items of property, plant and
equipment, the impairment/write-off of deferred
development costs, the impairment of trade receivables,
the impairment of other receivables, the gain on transfer
arising from factoring of trade receivables, the loss on
early repayment of an other borrowing and the net loss
on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
are included in “Other expenses, net” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The amortisation of deferred development costs of
HK$10,681,435 (2013: HK$19,096,012), the net
write-down of inventories to net realisable value of
HK$1,871,685 (2013: HK$13,358,278), the depreciation
in respect of certain of the Group’s motor vehicles of
HK$254,621 (2013: Nil) and minimum lease payments
under operating leases in respect of certain of the
Group’s motor vehicles of HK$114,549 (2013: Nil)
are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and in “Cost
of inventories sold and services rendered” disclosed
above.

The current year expenditure for research and
development activities charged directly to profit or loss
is included in “Research and development costs” on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Government grants have been received by a subsidiary
of the Group established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) for supporting its research and
development activities in Mainland China.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had no material
forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to its pension schemes in future years
(2013: Nil).

R ES e

31 December 2014
—T—WFE+=—RA=+—H

7. BRBAIEIE )

AN

##

ME - BELEREABORE ELT
B B B AR RO R E M sH - FEURBR AR
A - A ERRIANRE « REE
WS BB i e - IR FPEE—
REMEENERRHENE  BE
REHENBRFECIAGZEE
mARPE [ EMFESOFE] —H -

i JE [ B RY 7N /9 85 510,681,435
B T(— T — = 4 : 19,096,012/
L) MEFMBAFTEEJERFE
B A1,871,6858 (=& — = F ¢
13,358,278 L) AKEBEHE THE
& MBI B B254,6217% (=
T—=F:EB)RBAEEETHE
WAAZKERETHRERAS A
1145490 (ZE—=F &) B
DIAGREIBRERTAEERA ] —E
R EXTHEFE RIRERISAA]

HERBSEMEROAFEHEEEHH
XIIAGREEERTOAERME
XA —18 -

AREEMEARKAMBE([HE )KL
BB 8 1 B B IR AT BY & RS
HEFBEAMEHERFAEES -

R-ZZE—mNE+=-RA=+—RH  &&
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—=F 8|
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8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and section 78 of Schedule 11 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with
reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

EE M

REBEHEXZMBERAAES L™
MAIT EMARRLD REFE R AEGI(E
622 )8k 115 781K WL ER R F
BOI(FEIRE)FE 161 RBRENESFR
FMaT

Group
&5
2014 2013
—E—-mEF —FE—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Fees e 2,851,841 323,684
Other emoluments: Hi s -
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fe o R REMER
in kind 563,403 2,236,517
Reversal of equity-settled B (o] PR e 4 S B R B <2
share option expense, net R - (122,512)
Pension scheme contributions IRIRETEI B3R
(defined contribution scheme) (ERRHE 10,750 15,000
574,153 2,129,005
3,425,994 2,452,689

In prior years, two directors, one of which resigned from
his position during the prior year and the other director
resigned during the current year, were granted share
options before their appointment as the directors of
the Company, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 30(a) to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which had
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the applicable amounts included in
the consolidated financial statements for the prior year
in respect of the period in which they were the directors
of the Company were included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.
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31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEFMw)

(a) BAFHITES

(a) Independent non-executive directors

FRAENKENBILIFATES

The fees paid or payable to independent non-

executive directors during the year were as HHEEMT :
follows:
2014 2013
—E-MF —T—=
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Mr. Fang Jun FlEEE(RZE—MF
(appointed on 16 July 2014) +tA+NBEZET) 55,455 =
Mr. Zhao Xianming HERALE(RZZT—NF
(appointed on 16 July 2014) + A+ NBERIT) 55,455 =
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest EREEE(RZT—MF
(appointed on 16 July 2014) +t A+ SBEZE) 55,455 —
Prof. Chin Tai Hong Roland BAREK(R-_Z—=F
(resigned on 16 May 2013) A A+NHEHE) - 18,817
Dr. Lam Lee Kiu Yue Alice Piera ~ MZEBiiE+ (R -_T—=4F
(resigned on 25 March 2013) = AZ+HRABE) - 8,333
Mr. Ng Wai Hung REEXE(RZZ—=F
(appointed on 7 January 2013 —AtHEZER
and resigned on 29 August 2014) R-Z—HWNENA=-+NH
B 1) 29,167 49,194
Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence FEREE(R_ZE—=F
(resigned on 7 May 2013) A A+ BEE) - 17,742
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen EREAE(R_T—=F
(appointed on 7 January 2013 —HEREZER
and resigned on 29 August 2014) R-Z—MHWENA =+ B
BHE) 29,167 49,194
Ms. Zhou Jing ALt (R=ZE—=F
(appointed on 8 May 2013 and AANBEZER
resigned on 29 August 2014) RZZE—HFENAZF+NAB
BiT) 29,167 32,392
253,866 175,672

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the

year (2013: Nil).

FA AW EE AR B IFTT
EENFM(—ZT—=F:8) -
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8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEFMm
(b) Executive directors and (b) BITESRIHTES
non-executive directors
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
§¢ 2HK =N
e ENER HE [ Hmas
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
2014 “E-NE
Executive directors: BIES
Ms. Deng Shufen BRAaT(R=5-NF
(appointed on 16 July 2014) tAT/BEZf) 554,546 - - 554,546
Mr. Dai Yumin HEGAE(R-E-1E
(appointed on 16 July 2014) tAtABEZA) 554,546 - - 554,546
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan ARt (R=Z-mF
(appointed on 16 July 2014) AT BEZ) 554,546 - - 554,546
Mr. Gui Bin ERAE(RZ2-1EF
(appointed on 16 July 2014) tA+AREZRT) 554,546 - - 554,546
Mr. Lee Rabi * FEEEE (RZ5—1E
(resigned on 29 August 2014) NAZTWBER) - 563,403 10,750 574,153
Ms. Liu Yee Nee " BERZLT (R -2-mE
(resigned on 29 August 2014) NAZThAEE) (31,453) - - (31,453)
Mr. Mung Wai Ming " SEREE (W-Z-mF
(resigned on 29 August 2014) NAZTHREHE) (32,392) - - (32,392)
2,154,339 563,403 10,750 2,728,492
Non-executive director; FRTES
Mr. Wang Yongbin TAWAE(RZE-NE
(appointed on 16 July 2014) tATAREZRR) 443,636 - - 443,636
2,597,975 563,403 10,750 3,172,128

Only includes the remuneration of Mr. Lee

Rabi for the period before his resignation as a
director of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
Ms. Liu Yee Nee and Mr. Mung Wai Ming
waived their directors’ fees of HK$31,453 and
HK$32,392, respectively (2013: Nil).
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31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEFM =

(b) Executive directors and (b) HMITESRFHITESE
non-executive directors (continued)
Salaries, Reversal of
allowances  equity-settled Pension
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expense, net contributions remuneration
BERE
B EHR EEBRE &if
he EnEA Hx %8 BELE Emeg
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
AT A B AT B
2013 CE-zE
Executive directors: #nEs:
Dr. Lau Jack BRkREL (M5 -5
[resigned on 29 June 2013) NAZTNBEHE) 24,722 1,542,667 - 7,500 1,574,889
Mr. Leg Rebi PHRAE(R-T=f
(appointed on 19 July 2013)* tATNBEER) - 307,500 = 6,250 313,750
Ms. Liu Yee Nee BERAT(R=F-=%
(appointed on 15 May 2013) LATHRERE) 31453 - - - 31453
Mr. Mung Wai Ming FERTE(RN=E =%
(appointed on § May 2013) RA/\REZR) 32,39 - - - 32,392
Mr. Tao Hong Ming BRALEN-F-Z£
(resigned on 1 February 2013) ZA-REf) 4,167 386,350 (122,512) 1250 269,255
92,734 2,236,517 (122,512) 16,000 2,221,739
Non-executive directors: FanEs:
Prof. Cheng Roger Shu Kian HRAR(N-E-=E
(resigned on 19 July 2013) tATNEEHE) 27,639 - - - 27639
Prof. Tsui Chi Ying (e g d
[resigned on 19 July 2013) tATNBEE) 27639 = = = 27,639
55,278 - - - 55,278
148,012 2,236,017 (122,512) 15,000 2,211,017
' Only includes the remuneration of Mr. Lee Rabi . ERETHEELIEREZT
for the period subsequent to his appointment as EBRAREEZENEB O
a director of the Company. By o
Except for the waivers of directors’ fees granted by Ms. GEERZTESEERLAREERE
Liu Yee Nee and Mr. Mung Wai Ming as further detailed EE0SIINGEBEN A BRERMN =
in note 8(a) to the financial statements, there was no 8a) FAWEEZEMESNFREWEMS
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed MHMA T (T —=F : &) -

to waive any remuneration during year (2013: Nil).
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9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year
included one (2013: two) director, who resigned from his
position during the year, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 to the financial statements. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four
(2013: three) highest paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

IEREHNESR

FR - AEBRFHNEEEE—R(ZF
—=FWMREF  WORFRRER
WRENHFHFBENHT B RERMES -
FA - EBROBR(ZE—=F: =F)3¥*
ARABEFHTRAENZRSFEEN
FEeEBa T

follows:
Group
58
2014 2013
—E-MF —T—=
HK$ HK$
BT Vow
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e R BAK
benefits in kind BEWEA 3,774,064 4,077,594
Termination benefits R EEER - 159,150
Reversal of equity-settled share option P [0 B A 45 B PR AR
expense, net M F5R - (25,060)
Pension scheme contributions (defined BRIRFTEIE R (EBE
contribution scheme) HEETE) 59,250 66,250
3,833,314 4,277,934

The number of non-director highest-paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as

follows:

FHN T NI ERBENESRERTER
MABIAT :

Number of employees

BEAH
2014 2013
e ki —T— =%
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,000/ 7T 4 3
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31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. HEBRSFNEE®
(continued)
In prior years, share options were granted to three RNBAEFE =ZRZ(ZE—=F:=4)
(2013: three) non-director highest paid employees in FEEReFEEMAAEBIREMNR
respect of their services to the Group, further details BmERERE & —PF BN
of which are included in the disclosures in note 30(a) REAMFES0(@) » ZEHEIREN A FE
to the financial statements. The fair value of such (ERNBEHANEZRAERRER)RK
options, which had been recognised in the consolidated HEBET Mt ARFERBAFE
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was FEAEMBRERANSFEABIFER
determined as at the date of grant and the amounts ERNIFEERaFEENMESNRA -
included in the consolidated financial statements for
the prior year were included in the above non-director
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
INCOME TAX 10. FRiE®
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate EBNERTITMAREBELS 2 (Lt ER
of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in ML 16.5% B EHE - AR AEE
Hong Kong. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was BEFEVEREEELEEMERE R
made for the prior year as the Group did not generate o AW ERZEFEEEL TSGR &
any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during o Hibith [ My FER B A Jh i AN EE B
that year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have BN R EER SRR TERK
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the g o
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
2014 2013
—E-mF —g—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current — Hong Kong BVHR - &%

Charge for the year REFEXZH 1,121,404 =
Current — Elsewhere BIH - Eftbin @ 23,856 -
Deferred (note 28) IEFE (S5 28) 2,406,665 (64,217)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year AEEHERY(HE)

kT 3,551,925 (64,217)

Perception Digital Holdings Limited 4] % (5% R E R A 5
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31 December 2014
—E-mE+-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss
before tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate (the
statutory tax rate for the jurisdiction in which the
majority of the Group’s operating subsidiaries are
domiciled) to the tax credit at the Group’s effective tax
rate is as follows:

T8 &)

BERARNREEEERER(AEERF DK
S ERBMEREEEAEER X))
BORRBATEENHAR 2 BIR AN KE
ERBRAENREARMS (ER)ME
ARIAT

10.

Group
£H
2014 2013
—E-0F —F—=
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Loss before tax bR B B &S 18 (46,033,127)  (65,295,354)
Hong Kong statutory tax rate BEBEERE 16.5% 16.5%
Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory BEBETHETER
tax rate MIEE % (7,595,466)  (10,773,733)
Effect of difference in tax rate/tax rule FETE RlARE @ ok E A 7
for specific jurisdiction or enacted by BEETTIRMOHE
local tax authority MR T2 83,317 91,062
Loss attributable to a joint venture —REENRIELNEE 355,487 —
Income not subject to tax BERBA (489,538) (159,294)
Expenses not deductible for tax ARTHFL R & 2,633,704 4,279,756
Tax losses utilised from previous periods f& @7 B < B 75 18 (340,163) —
Tax losses not recognised RIERHBIIAEE 8,903,439 6,457,869
Others Hih 1,145 40,123
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s EARSENERTERTEN
effective tax rate ME L (ER) 3,551,925 (64,217)

A subsidiary of the Group established in the PRC has
obtained the status of National High-Tech Enterprise
and, accordingly, is entitled to a lower PRC corporate
income tax rate of 15% for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.
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11.

12.

Notes to Financial Statements

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE PARENT

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
parent for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes
a loss of HK$41,292,325 (2013: HK$64,897,112) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT

The calculations of the basic and diluted loss per share
are based on:

11.

12.

B 7% S 2 B

31 December 2014
—T—NWFE+-_A=+—H”

BREHEE ARLER
RE-T-—ME+-A=+—BILFE
EINGE PN Y TE=E S

DA ISR R N R I K18 41,292,325
BIT(ZE—=4F :64,897,112/87T) °

BRAREERRERE AR
EEREE

BEREARETEENGEIRE

2014 2013
=F-mF —F—=

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Loss E5#E

Loss for the year attributable to ordinary & A FE@EIRRELEAE A

equity holders of the parent FEIEFEREE (49,585,052) (65,231,137)
Number of shares
R EE
2014 2013
e o ki —T =%
Shares 5

Weighted average number of ordinary FAD BT T B INHE

shares in issue during the year T8

2,816,780,831 1,368,342,571
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31 December 2014
—E-mE+-A=+—H

12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT (continued)

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent of HK$49,585,052 (2013:
HK$65,231,137) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 2,816,780,831 (2013: 1,368,342,571)
in issue during the year. The basic loss per share
amounts for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013 have been adjusted to reflect the bonus element
in offerings of shares of the Company during the
respective reporting periods.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 in respect of a dilution
as the impact of the warrants and share options
outstanding during the respective reporting periods and/
or subsequent to the end of the respective reporting
periods as appropriate.
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31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 13. Y% > BERRE
EQUIPMENT
Group p=4E
Furniture,
fixtures Machinery
and office and Leasehold Motor
equipment equipment  improvements Toolings vehicles Total
i #ER
BOERE BENRE BELE I8 HE L
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
A A A A A A
31 December 2014 “E-METZAST-R
At 31 December 2013 and NE-ZF+CA=t-RR
at 1 January 2014; “5-mE-A-A:
Cost R 10,624,625 2,061,291 2,525,245 1,483,749 348,257 17,043,167
Accumulated depreciation and mpaiment ~ ZESERHE (8236,811) (1914,649) (1,637,031) (1,303,454) (116,085 (13208031)
Net carrying amount L 2,387,814 146,642 888,214 180,295 282171 3,8%,136

At 1 January 2014, net of accumulated N-E-mE-A-A-

depreciation and impaiment MB2ErERAE 2,387,814 146,64 868,214 180,205 22,474 3,835,136
Additons #E 2,489,004 - 3,218,529 - 149,623 5,857,356
Disposals il (17,929) - - - (627,647) (845,576)
Acquistion of a subsidary (note 32) YE-ZHBAR (%) 1,231,425 - - - 25,985,398 27,216,823
Depreciation provided during the year TEEERE (1,627,389) 87917) (1,133,352) (161,171) (341,685) (3,351,508)
Exchange realignment HE (17,549) - 9762) - - [27319)

At 31 December 2014, net of accumulated ~ R-E-MET-F=1-8"

depreciation and impaiment HB2EERAE 4,445,382 58,125 2,963,629 19,124 25,198,060 32,684,920
At 31 December 2014; RE-MEL-A=1-A:

Cost e 14,049,332 2,061,291 5,716,024 1,483,749 25,655,832 48,966,228

Accumulated depreciation and impaiment  ZEAEREE (9,603,950) (2,002,566) (2,752,395) (1,464,625) (457,112) (16,261,308)

Net carrying amount FRSE 4,445,382 58,725 2,963,629 19,124 25,198,060 32,684,920
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31 December 2014
—Z—m&E+=-_A=+—~H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQU'PMENT (continued)

13. W% - BERRE®

Group (continued) S8 (&)
Furniture,
fixtures Machinery
and office and Leasehold Motor
equipment equipment improvements Toolings vehicles Total
il %ER
BOERE BERRE HExE 14 HE it
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT AT AT AT AT AT
31 December 2013 e St o el
At 1 January 2013; NZE-=£-A-B:
Cost B 12,019,733 2,061,201 2,508,200 12,641,177 968,101 30,193,502
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment  ZEAEREE (7,603,286) (1,810,102) (84,821) (12,073,292) (363,175) (22,685,676)
Net carrying amount FEAE 4,416,447 251,189 1,667,379 567,885 614,926 7,507,826
At 1 January 2013, net of accumulated N-F-=£-5-B-
depreciation and impairment MB2EMERRE 4,416,447 251,189 1,667,379 567,885 614,926 7,507,826
Addtions HE 30,540 - - 210,250 - 240,190
Disposals h& (442,518) - (10203) - (223,622) (676,343)
Impairment i - - - (149,250) - (149,250)
Depreciation provided during the year TERRERE (1,666,679) (104,547) (783,238) (448,590) (161,979) (3,165,029)
Exchange realignment kS 50,024 - 24,276 - 2,842 ALY
At 31 December 2013, net of acoumulated  R-F-=F+ZA=1-8-
depreciation and impaiment MB2EMERRE 2,387 814 146,642 885,214 180,295 8171 3,835,136
At 31 December 2013: R=2-ZF+ZA=1-R:
Cost B 10,624,625 2,061,291 2,505,045 1,483,749 348,257 17,043,167
Acoumulated depreciation and mpaiment  ZEAEREE (8,236,811) (1,914,649) (1,637,031) (1,303,454) (116,086) (13,208,031)
Net carrying amount R 2,387,814 146,642 888,214 180,29 8171 3,835,136
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Notes to Financial Statements

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQU'PMENT (continued)
Group (continued)

At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s motor
vehicles with net carrying amounts of HK$6,960,313
(2013: Nil) and HK$15,099,834 (2013: Nil) were pledged
as security for certain of the Group’s other payables and
interest-bearing other borrowings as set out in notes 25
and 26, respectively, to the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the directors
of the Company assessed the recoverable amounts of
certain items of toolings with reference to the changes
in technological, market and economic environment,
and estimated sales orders of the relevant products,
and considered that a provision for impairment of
HK$149,250 should be made for items that had become
obsolete. In the opinion of the directors, such items do
not have any material fair value less costs of disposal or
value in use that could be recovered.

13.

R ES e

31 December 2014
—T—WFE+=—RA=+—H

M- - BMERRKRE®

3¢ )]

RZFE—WOE+_A=+—H  &5FRK
& E /B & AR E)FE 46,960,313 7T
ZE =% : &) K%15,099,834% T
—E-=F: BEEAEEETEM
AR R BEMEE ZERR - 55
B 7N B 75 R R B 5 25 K2 26

HE-_T—=F+-A=+—BL1LHF
B ARREEL2EZETIAEA NI
- MEBEREERENREREBEE
A EEE  FHETKRE S
B OURARBREREREMNER L
149250 B LW R ERE - EFR B -
ZEBHEVEFMNERNRFERBLEK
A fFAEERHKE -
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31 December 2014
—E-mE+-A=+—H

14. GOODWILL 14, &
Group £E8
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 RZE—=%—H—H"
and 1 January 2014 —E—=F+ZA=+—HK
—mFE—A—H =
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 32) WEE—RMB AR (HzE32) 72,383,420
Cost and net carrying amount at RZE—NF+_A=+—HZ
31 December 2014 B I BRTEDFR (B 72,383,420

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through a business combination
is allocated to the car rental cash-generating unit for
impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the car rental cash-
generating unit has been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by management. The growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the car rental cash-generating unit
beyond the five-year period is 3% and the discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 12%.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of the above cash-generating unit for 31
December 2014. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted revenue — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the revenue is the average revenue
achieved in the year immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements
and expected business and market developments.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.
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31 December 2014
—E-MFTZA=T—A

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. RTEB QB RES
Company
]
2014 2013
—ZE-0mF —T—=
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Unlisted investments, at cost JELEMIRE - KA E 10,144,572 10,144,507
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI 502,218,994 198,544,487
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEST MY B A B FkI8 (40) —
Impairment VoA (210,797,976) (174,518,881)
301,565,550 34,170,113
The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the AR B IR ENE E A E YL B A R
Company’s non-current assets are unsecured, interest- REAEER  RERBARBEHRR
free and are not repayable within twelve months from BT T ZEARNEE - 5T AXRRBARH
the end of the reporting period. The amounts due from/ BE/BENEKFEMKBARRIEA
to subsidiaries included in the Company’s current REEE . RENAREREERTE
assets/liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and B EE R o

are repayable on demand or have no fixed terms of
repayment.

Perception Digital Holdings Limited 4] % (5% R E R A 5
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15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

The movement in provision for impairment of

15. RTB A B ER (®)

RITE AR 2IRE /e B~ B 3RIE

investments in/amounts due from subsidiaries is as WEBREHNEEIINT
follows:
Company
AT
2014 2013
—E-mF —=—=

HK$ HK$

BT BT
At 1 January Bn—H—H 174,518,881 114,851,804
Impairment losses recognised B EREREER 36,279,095 59,667,077
At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—H 210,797,976 174,518,881

An impairment was recognised for the current year
for an unlisted investment in a subsidiary with a
carrying amount (before deducting the impairment loss)
of HK$10,144,507 as at 31 December 2014. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, there are
certain indicators of impairment for the investment and
an impairment was made based on an assessment
of the recoverable amount of the investment at the
end of the reporting period. The recoverable amount
of the investment is its value in use, which reflects
management’s estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the investment, taking into account changes
in economic and business conditions and the Group’s
strategies/future plans or expectations.

A provision for impairment was recognised for certain
individually impaired amounts due from subsidiaries with a
total carrying amount before provision of HK$200,653,469
(2013: HK$198,544,487) because, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the recoverable amounts
thereof, based on their estimated future cash flows,
reflecting changes in economic and business conditions
and the Group’s strategies/future plans or expectations,
were lower than their carrying amounts.
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198,544,487 %70 ) & T (@B B E
B FEUHT B R RIFUEE R E R o



Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2014
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15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. RB AR RER @)
(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FTEMBARFEET :

Percentage of

Place of Issued ordinary/ equity attributable
incorporation/ registered to the Company
registration and share capital ADF
business B&1T EhEEE A
Name TR LER  Direct Indirect Principal activities
a8 RS E R R A E# Gk TEEK
Perception Digital British Virgin Islands/ US$13,197.70 100 = Investment holding
Technology (BVI) Ltd. Hong Kong 13,197.70% T REER

(“Perception Digital BVI") ~ BEEBRLHE/Eb

Perception Digital Limited Hong Kong HK$67,690 — 100 Research, design,
ABEHEERAA BB 67,6907 7T development and sale
of DSP-based consumer

electronic devices/platforms,

including embedded firmware;

provision of solutions/services

for DSP-based consumer

electronic devices/platforms;

and trading of electronic

components/materials

% &t AER

HEENDSPHHEEFHEM

/Ea(BERAXEY)

RUEENDSPHHEE F&M

VaR-Y: Y EVE LR

AREFEH/MHNES

Perception Digital Holdings Limited 4] % (5% R E R A 5 137
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15.

(continued)

Name

il

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business
TR
R A i B

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BT

LER,/
R A

Percentage of

equity attributable
to the Company

ANF
EEEZEI T
Direct

Indirect

Hi Gk

15. RITB AT ER @)

Principal activities

TEXK

PD Trading (Hong Kong)
Limited

DBFRBECRY)BRAA

3Bays Corporation Limited

Hong Kong
EB

PRC/Mainland China
HE R

Hong Kong
BA
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HK$2
2AT

HK$16,060,000
16,060,000/ 7

HK$1
137

= 100

100

Research, design,
development and sale
of DSP-based consumer
electronic devices/platforms,
including embedded firmware;
provision of solutions/services
for DSP-based consumer
electronic devices/platforms;
and trading of electronic
components/materials
PR &et AER
HEERDSPHEEE THEM
/Ea(BERALEHS)
REERDSPEEBETEM
/SEaNBRAAR/ R
AREFEH/MHOE S

Research and

development of DSP-based
devices/platforms and provision
of embedded firmware;
provision of solutions/services
for DSP-based consumer
electronic devices/platforms
B2 e B % E 1A DSP 884/
FAREMRAZEMS ;
REENDSPHHEE FHEM
S EERRRTR/ R
AREFEMH/MHNES

Research, design,
development and sale

of DSP-based consumer
electronic devices/platforms,
including embedded firmware;
provision of solutions/services
for DSP-based consumer
electronic devices/platforms
- Bir AER
HERRDSPHEES 7231
/FE(BERARER)
RUENDSPRIEEEFHEM
S ERNBRRR /R ;
UREFEH/MHNES
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

B 7% S 2 B

31 December 2014

—T—WFE+=—RA=+—H

15. RITB A TR @)

Percentage of

Place of Issued ordinary/ equity attributable
incorporation/ registered to the Company
registration and share capital YN
business BRT EhEESZEALT

Name HERMAL, EER/ Direct Indirect Principal activities
=L MR EE AR A E# Gk TEEK
China E-Rental Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100 = Provision of intercompany
Company Limited BB 187 management services
REBREERRS
E-Rental International Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Trading of electronic
Trading Limited BB 18T components/materials
BYTH/MHZES
Irge ElE PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Provision of car
BREMAR" RE/REAE AR S5,000,000 T rental services
THEER
2 These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned * W EERAREFBEEEFMAOIE

enterprise under PRC law and their statutory financial
statements are not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong
Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

BELE  HEAEUBHRLIEAT
BRKE AN B L KGN =
BAEHBENEMKEREERR -

%:.uﬁ’j ERFSIARRRINFRATS

$§’§$'§l$¢f%ﬁ&@ﬁk$'§

l/%rﬁﬁél’\JE cEFREINE
ft, F R AR %Qé\ﬁfﬂmﬂﬁ @
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16. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

16. R—HXEERFARE

Group
&5
2014 2013
—F-mF == =
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Share of net assets L& EFE 7,845,534 =

The amount due from a joint venture included in the
current assets of the Group and the Company of
HK$5,842,767 (2013: Nil) and HK$5,728,464 (2013:
Nil), respectively, is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:

BINAREBEARBZ REIEEMNE
W—=R& & ¥NIERSL,842,767 T
—ZE—=F E)R5,728464BL(=
T—=F /) DRAKER T
RAEEEE R -

AEBEBZEERTZERNT -

Particulars
of issued Place of Percentage of
shares held registration and  Ownership Voting Profit
Name BEZBES business interest power sharing Principal activities
28 EERGFE  AMRERNE  REEER  REEHLE FE{5 A TEXH
Zither Clubhouse Limited* Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 50  Operations of clubhouse
LEEMERAR Lk 0 and restaurant
eMREESE
* Incorporated during the year and has not yet 4 RARERFTEMA L B R AR E B R

commenced operation up to the end of the reporting

period.
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INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 16. R—XREEATRE @)
(continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRETHEEEMERDAZUBEM
information in respect of Zither Clubhouse Limited: HE
2014
—E-lmEF
HK$
BT
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 10,774,590
Other current assets HEtneh&EE 982,372
Current assets MEEE 11,756,962
Non-current assets ERBEE 16,767,879
Current liabilities mBEE (12,138,773)
Non-current liability FERBAE (700,000)
Net assets EEFE 15,691,068
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HAEERESEERRFZ
joint venture: s H R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBMEEENBEMNT 50%
Carrying amount of the investment REZREE 7,845,534
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the period 518 & BAf 2 M & B 42 5t (4,308,932)
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17. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS 17. B KA

Group
&8
2014 2013
—E-mE 2=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated BN—A—HHKAK
amortisation and impairment Bk R 8 RO E 18,123,387 34,140,404
Additions — internal development NE — AZFE - 6,030,630
Amortisation provided during the year REZEEE (10,681,435)  (19,096,012)
Impairment/write-off during the year RNEFEREMH (4,883,863) (3,081,449)
Exchange realignment bE 5 A (59,825) 129,814
At 31 December RTZH=+—H 2,498,264 18,123,387
At 31 December: Rt+t=-—A=+—8":
Cost AR 24,633,134 50,537,847
Accumulated amortisation and 2EEHEK
impairment BE (22,134,870)  (32,414,460)
Net carrying amount BREFE 2,498,264 18,123,387

The impairment recognised during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 mainly reflected the decrease
in the recoverable amounts of certain electronic device
development projects of the Group as assessed by the
directors of the Company, with reference to, inter alia,
the changes in technological, market and economic
environment/developments and the Group’s strategies/
future plans or expectations, and estimated sales
orders of the relevant products, primarily as a result
of a decrease in the future revenue that the Group
expects to derive from these projects. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the related deferred
development costs do not have any material fair value
less costs of disposal or value in use that could be
recovered.
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INVENTORIES 8. &
Group
&5
2014 2013
—E-mEF —F—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials and components [E M K 2B 15 333,036 3,372,779
Finished goods 2K 2,146,126 815,461
2,479,162 4,188,240
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. BEWER
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T-=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables JFE U BR X 257,308,005 118,890,159
Impairment AE (44,334,131)  (33,400,557)

212,973,874 85,489,602

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit except for car rental customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. The
credit period is generally 30 to 90 days or 90 days
after month-end statement, or could be longer under
certain circumstances. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing, except
for an individual balance of HK$7,616,643 (2013:
HK$7,616,643) as at 31 December 2014, which bears
interest at 1.6% (2013: 1.6%) per month.

AEBEEFPIEREENATLES
Bk BRAEEERP ABEAERMN
RE - FEH-—BNF=1TREATX
FAEERNTRARETERRER
HiE - AREB D BBEHIEREEER
MENE - SREEAESEHEMN
BHARAESRR ©

BR-_FE—NWE+-—_A=+—HB—%H
Bl 4 27,616,643 B T(—Z & — = F -

7,616,643 B L)IEFA1.6% (=T —=
F1.6%) st B ERERAERE -
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Save as disclosed below, the Group generally does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivable balances.

As at 31 December 2012, a trade receivable
of HK$7,616,643 and an other receivable of
HK$20,058,594 of the Group were secured by an
item of intellectual property of a customer of the
Group. During the prior year, the Group had taken
the necessary steps to obtain the item of intellectual
property by exercising its rights over the collateral it
held as security. However, the Group was aware of a
civil suit filed by a third party in the United States of
America against this customer during the prior year due
to infringement of certain patents. The United States
International Trade Commission also imposed a limited
exclusive order to this customer during the prior year,
which prohibited the entry of the infringing electronic
devices and products of this customer with utilisation
of such intellectual property in the United States of
America. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider minimal future economic benefits could be
generated from this item of intellectual property to
the Group and no value was ascribed to it as at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013. The Group
currently does not have any policies or detailed plans
in respect of such item or for using it in its operations.
The Group recognised a full provision of HK$7,616,643
and HK$20,058,594 for the trade receivable and other
receivable, respectively, of this customer during the
prior year.
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19.

PE IR BR FR ()

BRRTXREESN  ARE—RIALEFL
H B W RAE SRIS A R W an s B Al
EREAY -

m:%—:¢+—ﬂ:+—5’$ﬁ
FERKER7,616,643B TN —%
E ftb, & Uy 3K 78 20,058,594 78 JT B A &
B—2XFPHM—THANMEREER - R
CFEAN - AEEERBATESH - £
TEREFEAERERCERR C#
MG ERABERE - AT A5EH
REXF—ZEZITREFERERR
LPETFENEMRNZEEFPREREF
R XERARESFZESNERNEFE
NRZEEFPER—EERI RS &
IFZAREPHMAZENSRERNS TR
MAMEREAER - Bt - XARES
RE - ZHENBEERRRAERAEE
ERIFEEMALEENE R=FT—I
F+ZA=FT—RHARZZE—=F+=A
=t BYERTEEMEES ~5E
BRI EERZMEEE B EARER
B A8 E - AEBRASF
EADRIFZEEF K ERRR R EM
JEW AR 2R 7,616,643 57T
120,058,594 % Tt ©



Notes to Financial Statements

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and

B 7% S 2 B

31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

19. BEWERR @)

RBEEHR  REZZAHROGEE
% BUYERFRHOBREDITANT -

net of provisions, is as follows:

2014 2013
=F-mF — T =
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 30 days i N 86,010,534 3,910,733
31 to 60 days =t+—XREANTX 61,306,096 20,635,405
61 to 90 days AtT—RXER+XK 51,551,781 21,436,571
Over 90 days TR E 14,105,463 39,506,893
212,973,874 85,489,602

The movements in provision for impairment of trade FEWBRFURERENE ST -

receivables are as follows:
Group
%E

2014 2013
—E-mE —ET—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January n—A—H 33,400,557 15,391,841
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) BERERAREEE(ME7) 11,869,599 18,495,805
Amount written off as uncollectible B 48 5 Uk 8] 1 A 85 B £ 58 (936,025) (487,089)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 44,334,131 33,400,557
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19.

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$44,334,131 (2013: HK$33,400,557)
with a carrying amount before provision of
HK$58,050,485 (2013: HK$51,780,570). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to debtors that were in
financial difficulties and/or were in default in payments
and none or only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

PE IR BR FR ()

51 R U BR TR (B B B SRR B
AIBREE A 44,334,131 B (=2 —=
% : 33,400,557 % 7t ) & 1@ 5 1 3R R E
B JE L AR 3Kk #Y 2 1 58,050,485 78 T (=
T — =% :51,780,570/8 L) - Z 5@
) B Rk (B A0 B LK AR SR BB A B R &
SR ARIBEBABRM - WA T8
Bl sk R gEU Bl —#85 A B A R MR ROE -

AR R ARRE 2 FE W AR SR 2 BRER 9 A 40
T é

Group
£H
2014 2013
—E-mF —FT—=

HK$ HK$

BT Vv

Neither past due nor impaired KA KRR E 197,475,265 38,850,270
Less than 31 days past due BMEALR=+—X 1,086,735 13,869,106
31 to 60 days past due BEI=+—KRERTRK 410,814 3,355,986
61 to 90 days past due BHAT—RXELTX 189,446 702,634
Over 90 days past due BEAN R E 95,260 10,331,593
199,257,520 67,109,589

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a sizeable number of debtors for
whom there was no recent history of significant default
and/or are major/strategic debtors of the Group.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. EWERF =)

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired BEAHERERBENELRFEARE
relate to a number of independent debtors that have ZZ AR EERE BENBILE
a good track record/relationship with the Group and/ AR/ AAREBHTE FEEEA
or are major/strategic debtors of the Group. Based B - BBUELR BRFHE A
on past experience/current assessment, the directors RIZEERA HAEEEZNEGEHAN
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision BRI EERANENERDERE]E
for impairment is necessary at this stage in respect g - BORREEHEMZEESRIED
of these balances as there has not been a significant ERE -

change in credit quality or relationship with the debtors
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 20. ENRIE - RERHEMEK
OTHER RECEIVABLES g
Group Company
£ NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=F —E-m& “T—=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
Prepayments BN RIA 1,129,075 304,805 36,727 13,949
Deposits and other receivables Re R EMEYEE 113,521,737 36,297,788 - =
Amounts due from directors [EMESFIA(HFE21)
(note 21) 4,000,000 - - -
118,650,812 36,602,593 36,727 13,949
Impairment B (33,172,049)  (27,830,869) - =
85,478,763 8,771,724 36,727 13,949
Less: Portion classified as B AERBEENSS
non-current assets (6,166,396) (172,228) - -
Current portion ENERED 2> 79,312,367 8,599,496 36,727 13,949
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 20. ENFE - #EREMEW

OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the above deposits amounting to
HK$4,550,398 (2013: Nil), of which HK$114,947 (2013:
Nil) is included in current assets and HK$4,435,451
(2013: Nil) is included in non-current assets in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position,
are non-interest-bearing cash deposits paid to a leasing
company under certain arrangements as further detailed
in note 26(c) to the financial statements and will be
returned upon the expiry of the terms of the relevant
agreements.

Other receivables are non-interest-bearing, except
for two individual balances of HK$20,058,594
(2013: HK$20,058,594) and HK$10,317,855 (2013:
HK$10,447,675), which bear interest at 1.6% (2013:
1.6%) per month and 14% (2013: 14%) per annum,
respectively.

The movements in provision for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

FRIE ()

5 — 5445503988 T (ZE—=
F:ENTFRER  HRELEEHER
MEAFTIRARBEEZ 114,947 BT (=
T—=F &) URIRFERDHEES
24,435 451 B (ZFE—=F : ) A
I ERESTFRIMAFHERT - BR
BB REBAEERER - BETHFBIHRA
BF 7% = M 8% 26(c) °

B W £ fd Bl 4% 220,058,594 78 L (= &
— =% : 20,058,594 7T ) &% 10,317,855
BIT(ZZT— =4 :10,447,67587T) D
AIEFA16E(ZE—=F:16E )X
BFE4E(ZE—=F : 14F )it 24
EEWRIE AR S -

HpEUGRIRR B EREZZIT

Group
£

2014 2013

—E-mF —E—=F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

At 1 January Hn—HA—H 27,830,869 7,625,859
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) BEEREREEE (M) 5,426,590 20,184,795
Exchange realignment PE i FH 2 (85,410) 20,215
At 31 December WTr=E=r=[E 33,172,049 27,830,869

Included in the above provision for impairment of other
receivables is a provision for individually impaired other
receivables of HK$33,172,049 (2013: HK$27,830,869)
with a carrying amount before provision of
HK$33,177,249 (2013: HK$30,506,269). The individually
impaired other receivables relate to amounts that are
long outstanding or debtors of the Group that are in
default in payments and the other receivables or a
portion thereof are not expected to be recovered.
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21.

Notes to Financial Statements

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Except for financial assets relating to the provision for
impairment of other receivables, none of the above
assets is impaired at the end of the reporting period and
the financial assets relate to deposits and receivables
for which there was no recent history of significant
default or which are due from independent debtors that
have a good relationship with the Group.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM DIRECTORS

Amounts due from directors, disclosed pursuant to
section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) with reference to section 161B
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), are as follows:

B 7% S 2 B

31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

20. EMNFIE  BERHMBEK

FIE(E)

RERAEMERKFIBERERENTEE
ES RBEMER EREEARR
B MZEMBEENRE RERFHIEA
W N EANE 4 B BRI R RS Sk ek R ER (B
BAERRITFHBIEBA -

1. BRESFIA

JEWEERBERERE QRN (E
622E )M RI11FET781E  WARER QA
EHI(E32Z)FE161BIFIHENT

Group -3
Maximum
amount
31 outstanding
December during the 1 January Security
2014 year 2014 held
—B2-IF
+=A ERRS —E-mF
=t-H FEHEE —-A-H P8 8
HK$ HK$ HK$
Name ®E BT BT BT
Ms. Deng Shufen BREZ T 2,400,000 2,400,000 - None &
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan ATELL 800,000 800,000 - None %
Mr. Gui Bin ERLE 800,000 800,000 - None &
4,000,000 -

The amounts due from directors are unsecured,
interest-free and are repayable on demand.

RRESFEARERR  THEMRE
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 22

. IRHERE

Group
£8
2014 2013
—E-mEF —=2—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unlisted debt instrument, at fair value FLMEBREE  BAFE 1,260,000 =

The above debt instrument consists of an unlisted
structured deposit placed with a bank which was
designated as a available-for-sale financial asset. The
principal is fully guaranteed by the bank while the
interest rate is not guaranteed, and the maximum
expected interest rate is 4% per annum. The maturity
date of the instrument is 4 December 2018 and can be
redeemed at any time before that date.

EREBRERE-REFRRITLE
EFEAHRLESREENIFLMERKE
TR ZEARNASCEHRERTE
R EEMERERR Bt &SFH
RR4% - A RENR_FT—-NF+-A
mOE B - 3R % B IR (] B
[E] o

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. e RBESEEYUREIR
AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS RIBITEX
Group Company
8 A
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-MmF —T—= —E-mEF “T—=fF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Cash and bank balances RERIRTEER 8,090,982 12,439,149 3,188,006 10,572,684
Time deposits EHER - 19,718,550 — 13,700,000
8,090,982 32,157,699 3,188,006 24,272,684
Less: Pledged deposits for B BITEETHE
banking facilities BHRER - (5,241,218) - -
Pledged deposit for a FARHETHE
licensing arrangement BHER - (777,332) - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEEY 8,090,982 26,139,149 3,188,006 24,272,684
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

(continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances, and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$2,101,440
(2013: HK$498,666) and Nil (2013: HK$3,923,920),
respectively. The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits were
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earned interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

B 7% S 2 B

31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

23. BeRkBASEEYUAREE

HIBITER @

RBEHER AEBUARETAR
EDHENESRBITESBUARTESH
FED R A2101,4408 T(Z B —=
% :498,66648 L) REB(ZE—=4F:
3,923,920 7L) - ARBTA B A A
BRAEEMER - AW - BIEHBEAKELN
CONE B IR G0 R AEIE - SERJEEE
RE)  NEBEEERBERELEINE
EBHRITBARE L BRAEME -

RITFEREEBRITERNEZB A
ERBAME - REAREENNEREH
2 EHEHERENTF-XRE=EA
TENZEHBIEL RIESENEHE
HAE RN R ERELF B  RITAEERANE B
FREFALHLBEEDCTENAREE
HERTTH °
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24. TRADE PAYABLES 24, EFERRE
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of RmEMR - BIBEEEEH - BAHERX
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as RIBRER DATIAT -
follows:
2014 2013
—E-ImF ZE—=%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 30 days =+RA 426,012 27,732,890
31 to 60 days =f+—REATXK 265,909 15,703,220
Over 60 days NTRE 34,109,457 41,838,477

34,801,378 85,274,587

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and the JERBRZTEE  MBSEREALTH
credit terms generally granted by trade creditors are 30 REBH—RAE=-ZTENTXRSALELR
to 90 days or 90 days after month-end statement. n+x-

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. EMESFIEREFTRIE

Group Company
] AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE —T-=F “E-MmF =%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
B BT BT BT
Due to directors [ENEEHIE - 194,625 - 248,684
Deferred revenue TERA 2,132,723 = - =
Other payables HAERRIE 74,221,718 9,001,422 198,614 509,020
Accruals &t HIE 2,133,674 1,650,324 - 222,120
78,488,115 10,846,371 198,614 979,824
The amounts due to directors were unsecured, interest- BNESHREAEERA ARV ER
free and had no fixed terms of repayment. FEE -
Except for certain of the Group’s other payables of R-ZZBE—NE+-_A=+—H ' BAE
HK$6,678,323 (2013: Nil), which are secured by the BETER—FANSENEMENK
pledge of certain of the Group’s motor vehicles with 6,678,328 B (T —=4F: &)EH
net carrying amounts of HK$6,960,313 at 31 December AREEZETEREFEA6,960,3138 7T
2014 (2013: Nil) (note 13) and are repayable within (Z2—=%F : &) (WzE13) Ay = 8 2 7
one year, other payables are non-interest-bearing and SEEE N - A E ML FE N RIB B TE
generally have credit terms of around 30 to 90 days. BERIEH—RAEBH=ZTRENTK °
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26. INTEREST-BEARING OTHER 26. tEHME
BORROWINGS
Group £E
2014 2018
ZE-MF —F-=
Contractual Contractual
interest rate Maturity HK$ interest rate Maturity HKS
FHEER HEA B AHEE 38R B
Current Ik
Other borrowing - unsecured ~ EM{EE - £ - - - 6% 2014 31,330,795
(note (3) (Wit (a)
Other borrowings - secured RS - BER 9%-10.17% 2015 8,386,341 = = =
(note (c) (H# ()
8,386,341 31,330,795
Non-current £
Other borrowing - unsecured ~ EMEE - EHH# - - - 5% 2015 12,300,000
(note (0) (K3 (o)
Other borrowings - secured EffEE - BEER 9%-10.17% 2016-2017 5,311,104 = = =
(note (c) (H& ()
5,311,104 12,300,000
13,697,445 43,630,795
Company AL
2014 2018
“2-mF oF-=
Contractual Contractual
interest rate Maturity HKS$ interest rate Maturity HKS$
FHEX HEA B AHEE B B
Current Ik
Other borrowing - unsecured ~ EM{EE - B - - - 6% 2014 31,330,795
(note (a) (H @)
Non-current JEA
Other borrowing - unsecured ~ EfEE - 2 H - - 5% 2015 12,300,000
(note (b)) (GEL)
- 43,630,795
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26. INTEREST-BEARING OTHER

ﬁ /%\

HEEwm)

BORROWINGS (continued)

Group Company
£
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-lmF —2—=F —E-ImE —E—=F
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
Analysed into: AR
Other borrowings repayable: BEENEMEE
Within one year —FR 8,386,341 31,330,795 - 31,330,795
In the second year B_F 5,249,309 12,300,000 - 12,300,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EERF
(BREERME) 61,795 = - =
13,697,445 43,630,795 - 43,630,795
Notes: BT EE
(a) An other borrowing of the Company and the Group (a) RZZE—=F+=-_A=+—8 ' &2
with a carrying amount of HK$31,330,795 as at 31 AIRAREEEARERERIERN —
December 2013 contained a repayment on-demand T8 H b {5 B AR E 18 31,330,795 % 7T
clause that gave the lender the right to demand the BTYTERFEFNR-_Z—HF—A+N
repayment of the other borrowing together with interest Az BERKEEZAMEREERH
accrued thereon at any time on or after 18 January FEETRLE - Bt - LA S -
2014. Accordingly, for the purpose of the above RZE—=F+=-"A=+—H8 ' »n—
analysis, a portion of the other borrowing due for FRIHERNZEMEBEESH 5
repayment after one year as at 31 December 2013 was MAR-_T—=F+=-A=+—H4%4A
analysed into other borrowing repayable within one year RE-—FREENHEMEER -RZ-F
as at 31 December 2013. As a result of the completion —=F=ATKAREEER ZEE
of an open offer in March 2013, this lender became a FRABRRBRRR c RAFRAE
shareholder of the Company. The Company and the EERNFABRZEMEES  RZF
Group repaid the other borrowing during the current —mE+ZA=+—H #BEKER
year and had no outstanding other borrowing from the RERBEBER ©
shareholder as at 31 December 2014.
(b) Another other borrowing of the Company and the (b) R-E—=F+-_A=+—8 ' &R

Group with a carrying amount of HK$12,300,000 as at
31 December 2013 was advanced by a then related
company of the Company, in which a then significant
beneficial shareholder of the Company had then a
beneficial interest in the related company. The other
borrowing from the related company was unsecured,
bore interest at 5% per annum and was repayable on
31 January 2015. The Company and the Group repaid
the other borrowing during the current year.
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—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

-

INTEREST-BEARING OTHER 26. ;tEHMEE®

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued) Mot (&)

(©) During the current year, the Group entered into certain () RAFEE  AEEE-F=7HER
sale and lease back agreements with a third party AI(THAE DB THEREL R
leasing company (the “lessor”), with contract terms 2 ANENTIEMEE=F - AN A
ranging from two to three years. In the opinion of the EERA HEARXZEHALBATR
directors of the Company, the underlying transaction AEBIREREZ AN UEEET
is in substance a means whereby the lessor provides HEHAEESEREEERZE I
finance to the Group for the purchases of certain AMEEERmEER - Bt - NEEH
motor vehicles for its car rental business, with the ZERSHGEBE LERRMERERHE
corresponding motor vehicles as security. Accordingly, B BREMARENBARSD AR KR
the Group has treated such transaction in substance EFREER TAREHE -

a finance lease arrangement as substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the motor
vehicles are transferred to the Group.
At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease RZTE—MOFE+=A=+—H - BI&
payments under such arrangement and their present BT HEH R IR &R 42 &5 IE KR
values were as follows: BT :
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum Minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
Group payments payments payments payment
BKAE RERE BEHE REHE
r5E E (ES RREE NREE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F —Z2-mE —T-=%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT
Amounts payable: BRI
Within one year —FR 9,371,579 - 8,386,341 -
In the second year F-ER 5,469,442 - 5,249,309 =
In the third year to fifth years, EZEFEREF
inclusive (RHEERME) 62,760 = 61,795 -
Total minimum finance lease RERERE
payments e 308 14,903,781 = 13,697,445 =
Future finance charges ARBEER (1,206,336) =
Total net finance lease payables RMEMENFBFE 13,697,445 =
Portion classified as current liabilities 5 A&7 8) & E# 27 (8,386,341) -
Non-current portion JEBNER SR 5,311,104 -
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26. INTEREST-BEARING OTHER 26. ;FEHMEE @)
BORROWINGS (continued)
Ignoring the effect of any repayment on-demand clause MR E IR EREREROTE (FFR
as detailed in note (a) above and based on the maturity R (a))&*ﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬂ%f%ﬁ’ﬂiﬂﬂﬁi
terms of the other borrowings, the other borrowings of B AEEHMEENEEESEA

the Group are repayable:

Group Company
%8 AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=f —E-|mE —E-=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT
Within one year —FR 8,386,341 2,730,113 - 2,730,113
In the second year B_F 5,249,309 13,925,082 - 13,925,082
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FFRF
(REEEWE) 61,795 26,975,600 - 26,975,600
13,697,445 43,630,795 - 43,630,795
All interest-bearing other borrowings of the Group were RZZE—NMFE+=-A=+—H " &A%H
denominated in Renminbi (2013: Hong Kong dollars) as AT EEMEEAUARE(ZZ—=
at 31 December 2014. F:BT)INE -
27. PROVISION 27. B
Group £E8
Product
warranties
EmRE
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2014 R-—E—NF—H—H 672,700
Additional provision (note 7) RN (FRET) 8,000
Net amounts utilised during the year FRNFERNFEER (680,700)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MNE+=—A=+—H8 —
The Group provides warranties to its customers on AEBAEETERNRFIRHERE -
certain of its products. The amount of the provision for RBEMNBESBIZBEENESLHEE
the warranties is estimated based on sales volumes BRI AEEBNBR  BEHEERB
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns ARHEERELH MG o B E%E
according to the corresponding contractual sales terms TR B RN EE Rk T LAEER o

or the Group’s policy. The estimation basis is reviewed
on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.
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28. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

B 7% S 2 B

31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

28. ELEHIE

FR EERABBEREENZE I

during the year are as follows: N
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEERE
Group 55
Depreciation
allowance
in excess Deferred
of related development
depreciation costs Total
HBHERR
wEN B
mERE B 2% B 2R wE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%F—H—H 201,945 5,510,445 5,712,390

Deferred tax credited to FAREBZRET AR

profit or loss during the IR IE

year® (124,095) (2,613,523) (2,737,618)
Exchange realignment bE 5, R B = 11,780 11,780
Gross deferred tax liabilites WM-ZE—=F+-_A=+—

at 31 December 2013 ARk=—ZE—HmF—H—H

and at 1 January 2014 REET A B ERRE 77,850 2,908,702 2,986,552
Deferred tax charged/ FRREBZ(GEA),/ B A

(credited) to profit or ERETIE *

loss during the year* 74,518 (2,498,732) (2,424,214)
Exchange realignment [ N A% - (8,973) (8,973)
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-—Z—ME+ = A

at 31 December 2014 =+— BRRERIE

BEAER 152,368 400,997 553,365
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 28. EZEBIE (&)
Deferred tax assets ELEBIEEE
Group £H5

Losses available
for offsetting

against future Warranty
taxable profits provision Total
A B 85
Viegill: ) -] RERE okl
HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—HF—H 7,894,238 161,210 8,055,448
Deferred tax charged to profit or  FRR BN AETHIE*
loss during the year* (2,623,187) (50,214) (2,673,401)
Exchange realignment R 11,170 — 11,170
Gross deferred tax assets at R-E-—=F+-A=1+—-8K
31 December 2013 and at —T-ME—-R—BMEE
1 January 2014 BB ERR 5,282,221 110,996 5,393,217
Deferred tax charged to profit or  FRR B kR AELEFE
loss during the year* (4,719,883) (110,996) (4,830,879)
Exchange realignment B 5 AR (8,973) - (8,973)
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 RZZE—WE+=ZA=+—H
December 2014 HEEHIBEERTE 553,365 - 553,365
* Net deferred tax charged to the consolidated * FN - ERGERRNKRARLERIE
statement of profit or loss during the year amounted FEE 42,406,665 B L (ZE—=F :
to HK$2,406,665 (2013: net deferred tax credited of S ARER TR R 64,217 BT (Fis
HK$64,217) (note 10). 10) ©
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)
Group (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The following is an
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for
financial reporting purposes:

28.

R ES e

31 December 2014
—T—WFE+=—RA=+—H

1R FE B TH ()
EEBEEEE)

£ (H)

BE2MME  ETECHELAERERE
EREAMBRARAES - WTFAK

S 5L 75 B ¥R B B9 T 0 AT R IR SE AR IR
RERR

Group
£ H
2014 2013
—EB-ImF —F—=
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in A BRI RNIERR
the consolidated statement RIETIE & = H5
of financial position - 2,406,665
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong REBEEBBELEMNBEEBEY

Kong of approximately HK$191,512,000 (2013:
HK$166,149,000), subject to the agreement by the
Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department, that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits arising in Hong Kong of the companies in which
the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising
in Mainland China of approximately HK$7,137,000
(2013: HK$9,405,000), subject to the approval of the
relevant PRC tax authority, that will expire in one to five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits arising
in Mainland China of the company in which the losses
arose.

191,512,000 70(=ZZ — =4 : 166,149,000
BT BFEABERNER)JER
HAEEEEEBEORARRRESRE
A EY FERR B vt Al o ZN &R B 1 R B KB
EENHIEEEL7,137,0008T(=%
— =4 : 9,405,000 7t ) (B F R+
BEHEHEANIE) BR—ZEZRAFRE
W AT S EE AR B IR A R R RAE
HRE K BEEE R FE SR B ) o
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28.

29.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets have been recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised based on
management’s forecasted future taxable profits, which
are based on (i) the availability of taxable temporary
differences relating to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity; (i) whether the unused
tax losses resulted from identifiable causes which are
unlikely to recur; and (iii) the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of tax losses of approximately HK$195,227,000 (2013:
HK$143,045,000) as, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, it is currently not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which such
tax losses can be utilised.

28.

EERIE (&)

el BJ BE 7B 2R 2 8 SR A5 i M) LA 35 86 A] K B
AMAHINEREZRE  AEENARSH
HEE R MABAREARER @ AIREE
BEER()BBHERNEE R RER K
BERBWASERVEREZRE () RH
ANEEEEEARETEREELN
AR RA M BB+ R (i) R RBUE
M B AT B2 3 A B R AN AR 2 R R 2R B WA T
B B RK AT TEOAI B0 2R SR M8 SR i ) e R
EFHIREE °

HRARNREERABAAERKBEE
FERBAF A AEEEZEHIEERE -
AT 4 BL R TB B 18 49 195,227,000 75 7T
T — =4 : 143,045,000 7T ) FER
EETHIHEE -

SHARE CAPITAL 29, B
Shares B% 12
2014 2013
—E-EF ===
HKS$ HKS$
BT BT
Authorised: YERE
20,000,000,000 (2013: 2,000,000,000) 20,000,000,000 (=& —=
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (2013: 4 : 2,000,000,000 f%) &A%
HK$0.1 each) AE0I B TEBR(=ZZ
—=4%: HiR®EE0.1/8/t) 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEBITRHAT
4,081,375,000 (2013: 1,120,500,000) 4,081,375,000 % (= E—=

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (2013: £ :1,120,500,000 fi% ) FA
HK$0.1 each) HEO0.01 B TEBR(=ZZ
—=%F : §mEC.151T) 40,813,750 112,050,000
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—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

A summary of the movements in the Company’s

29. BRA& )

FRAXRREBTRAZH Z2HEWD

issued share capital is as follows: s €
Share
Number of premium
shares in issue Issued capital account Total
BEITROEE BETRE ROBEE @it
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—F—H 622,500,000 62,250,000 43,490,307 105,740,307
Issue of shares in connection FLARZE 317
with the Open Offer | Bt (B 2E (2)
(note (a)) 311,250,000 31,125,000 8,901,750 40,026,750
Issue of shares in connection FtECEHIE|%1T
with the Placing | (note (b)) R An (B 2E (b)) 186,750,000 18,675,000 14,193,000 32,868,000
498,000,000 49,800,000 23,094,750 72,894,750
Share issue expenses BHETER - - (2,553,168) (2,553,168)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZ—=%+_-A
and at 1 January 2014 Z+-BR=FT-HEF
—A—H 1,120,500,000 112,050,000 64,031,889 176,081,889
Capital Reduction (note (c))  HIJAARA (B 5E (c)) - (100,845,000) = (100,845,000)
Issue of shares in connection FEARZEE 1317
with the Open Offer |l Bfn (KI5 (d)
(note (d)) 1,344,600,000 13,446,000 53,784,000 67,230,000
Issue of shares in R EIEET
connection with the Share  B& {3 (Fff3E (e))
Subscription (note (e)) 616,275,000 6,162,750 97,371,450 103,534,200
Issue of shares in connection  FtER & HEIE || 31T
with the Placing Il (note (f)) etn (B 2E () 1,000,000,000 10,000,000 165,000,000 175,000,000
2,960,875,000  (71,236,250) 316,155,450 244,919,200
Share issue expenses BRInETER - = (7,997,869) (7,997,869)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NF
+-A=t+—H 4,081,375,000 40,813,750 372,189,470 413,003,220
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

During the year, the movements in share capital were

as follows:

(@)

On 27 February 2013, the Company issued a
prospectus, pursuant to which, the Company
proposed an open offer to issue not less than
311,250,000 ordinary shares of the Company to
its existing shareholders on the basis of one offer
share of the Company for every two shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.1286 per offer share
(the “Open Offer 1”).
announcement of the Company dated 19 March

As further detailed in an

2013, the Open Offer | became unconditional and
a total of 311,250,000 offer shares were issued
in March 2013.

As further detailed in an announcement of
the Company dated 22 August 2013 and an
announcement for amendment of the Company
dated 23 August 2013, the Company entered
into a placing agreement with a placing agent,
pursuant to which, the placing agent conditionally
agreed with the Company to endeavor on a best
effort basis to place up to 186,750,000 placing
shares of the Company at a placing price of
HK$0.176 per placing share (the “Placing 1”). On
2 September 2013, the Company announced that
the conditions of the Placing | had been fulfilled
and the completion of the Placing | took place
on the same day. An aggregate of 186,750,000
placing shares of the Company were successfully
placed pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the placing agreement.
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29. BRA& )

ERBAZ BBNT -

RZE—=F_H=++H' ' &
ARATEZEEER Bt A2
RIERETARAEE - UBITT
L) 311,250,000 B AR 7] X8
RTHEBEBERE  EERTWR
BROEEARNF —REERD
BREERNREERO0.1286
B[ RAFEEE]) - HIMARF]
B#A-_ZT—=F=-A+hBHX
AR — SR - AREEIK
BB kA 311,250,000 %
BRERHEN ST —=F=F%
7 °

BOAARARTBHAZZT—=FN
AZ+ B8 2MEARA H
WE-—ZT—=F/ \A=+=H
WIEETAM)FTE—FFl - K
AR E-—EEREFTLREEH
mBIE ZREEREEEK
HHEARRBERENRE R
% 186,750,000 0% & 2 & Bd &
R BEEEAERESRH
0176 B T([EEEFIHI]) - K=
TE—=—FNA-H ARE=EMH
FREEIB I MGG ELENX - BiS
EEHIERRBTK - RIBERE
WA IR RS - BIEFERE
A #£186,750,000 & & A 7 Bd &
AR o
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(©

On 20 August 2013, the Company issued
a circular, pursuant to which, the Company
proposed (i) a capital reduction to reduce each
of the paid-up capital of the Company from
HK$0.1 to HK$0.01 per share by cancelling
paid-up capital of HK$0.09 per share (the
“Capital Reduction”) and the credit arising from
the Capital Reduction be applied towards the
cancelling of the accumulated deficit of the
Company; and (ii) a sub-division to sub-divide
each of the authorised but unissued ordinary
shares of the Company with a par value of
HK$0.1 each into 10 unissued ordinary shares
of the Company with a par value of HK$0.01
each (the “Sub-division”). On 20 January 2014,
the Company announced that all the conditions
precedent for the implementation of the Capital
Reduction and Subdivision had been fulfilled and
the Capital Reduction and Sub-division became
effective on 20 January 2014 (after market close)
(Hong Kong time).

On 3 January 2014, the Company issued a
prospectus pursuant to which, the Company
proposed an open offer to issue 1,344,600,000
ordinary shares of the Company to its existing
shareholders on the basis of six offer shares for
every five existing shares at a subscription price
of HK$0.05 per offer share (the “Open Offer II”).
The Open Offer Il was conditional upon, among
other things, the completion of the Capital
Reduction as mentioned in note (c) above.
Pursuant to an announcement of the Company
dated 24 January 2014, the Open Offer Il
became unconditional and the dealing of the offer
shares was commenced on 28 January 2014.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

©

On 26 April 2014, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) with Nat-Ace Pharmaceutical Ltd.
(subsequently renamed as Sino Merchant Car
Rental Limited) (“Sino Merchant”), pursuant to
which, the Company agreed to issue and Sino
Merchant agreed to subscribe for 616,275,000
shares of the Company in cash at a price of
HK$0.168 per share (the “Share Subscription”).
On 9 July 2014, the Company and Sino Merchant
jointly announced that the conditions precedent
to the completion of the Subscription Agreement
had been fulfiled and the completion of the
Subscription Agreement took place on 9 July
2014.

As further detailed in an announcement of
the Company dated 15 September 2014, the
Company entered into a placing agreement with
a placing agent, pursuant to which, the placing
agent conditionally agreed with the Company to
endeavor on a best effort basis to place up to
1,000,000,000 placing shares of the Company
at a placing price of HK$0.175 per placing share
(the “Placing 11”). On 20 November 2014, the
Company announced that the conditions of the
Placing II had been fulfilled and the completion
of the Placing Il took place on the same day. An
aggregate of 1,000,000,000 placing shares of
the Company were successfully placed pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the placing
agreement.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Warrants

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
issued unlisted warrants to an independent third party
(the “Warrants Subscriber”) as part of the conditions
for the provision of a loan facility of HK$50 million by
the Warrants Subscriber to the Group for a period of
5 years. The warrants entitle the Warrants Subscriber
to subscribe up to HK$16,807,500 in aggregate, in
cash for ordinary shares of the Company at an original
subscription price of HK$0.27 per share, subject to
adjustments, at any time during the period from 31
October 2012 to 30 October 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, as a result
of the completion of the Open Offer | and the Placing |
of the Company in March 2013 and September 2013,
respectively, the subscription price of the outstanding
warrants was adjusted to HK$0.23 per share pursuant
to the terms of the instrument relating to the warrants.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, as a result
of the completion of the Open Offer Il and the Placing
[I'in January 2014 and November 2014,
the subscription price of the outstanding warrants was

respectively,

further adjusted to HK$0.12 per share pursuant to the
terms of the instrument relating to the warrants.

The exercise in full of such warrants would, under the
capital structure of the Company as at 31 December
2014, result in the issue of 140,062,500 additional
ordinary shares of the Company.

29.
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants
(including directors, employees and consultants
of the Company and its subsidiaries) who render
services and/or contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include any proposed or existing
director, manager or other employee of the
Group; any shareholder of the Company; any
supplier of goods or services to the Group; any
customer, consultant, business or joint venture
partner, franchisee, contractor, or agent of any
member of the Group; any person or entity
that provides design, research, development
or other support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member
of the Group; and any associate of any of the
foregoing persons. The Scheme became effective
on 27 November 2009 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted under
the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time or with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, and commences after a vesting
period of one to three years and ends on a date
which is not later than five years from the date
of offer of the share options or the expiry date of
the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be
less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares; (ii) the closing price of the
Company’s shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
the date of offer of the share options; and (iii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares
listed on the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer.
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013, as a result of the completion
of the Open Offer | and the Open Offer Il in March
2018 and in January 2014, respectively, the
exercise price of the outstanding share options
of the Company and the number of shares that
can be subscribed for upon the exercise of
the outstanding share options were adjusted
(individually, the “Adjustment”) with reference to
the provisions of the Scheme, Rule 17.03(13)
of the Listing Rules and the supplementary
guidance issued by the Stock Exchange on 5
September 2005 regarding the interpretation of
Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders
to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

30. REZEEBREZHE®

(a) Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) HEERfETE(E)
The following share options were outstanding FR - RIBETE M ARITER B R
under the Scheme during the year: M
“E-mE —F-=
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
MEFLHTERE BREHE  METHORE ERESA
HK$ HK$
per share per share
gRET BRAT
At 1 January R—HA—H 0.646 1,853,469 0.7 5,250,000
Forfeited during the period —ZE—=%—FA—H
from 1 January 2013tc E-ZF—=%=R
20 March 2013 —+BHREEE - - 0.7 (750,000)
Adjustment FEES 935,260 377,550
Forfeited during the period —ZE—=£=f=+—
from 21 March 2013to ~ HEZZ—=%
31 December 2013 +ZRA=1+—HH#
FfERE - - 0.646 (1,398,231)
Expired during the year FERER 0.429 (2,788,729) 0.646 (1,625,850)
At 31 December W+ZA=1t—H - - 0.646 1,853,469
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION 30. REAEBREZH®

ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
(@) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price after the Adjustment during
the year ended 31 December 2013 and exercise
period of the share options outstanding as at 31
December 2013 are as follows:

(a)

FB IR RE ST &l (50

W=B—=4+-A=+—8
MARITERRERNBE =2 —=
F+-B=t+—ALFEERE
EOTERRITERMT :

2013 —E—=fF
Number of options Exercise price after
after the Adjustment the Adjustment* Exercise period
ARENBRERE ARBNITEE TEH
HK$ per share
BB T
1,853,469 0.646 26 March 2013 to 25 March 2014

— =

—=

=F=ZA-tRBE-_T-@OF

=A-+HH

The exercise price of the share options is
subject to adjustment in the case of rights or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

At 31 December 2014, the Company had no
share options outstanding under the Scheme, as
all the share options were lapsed on 25 March
2014.
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Share Options under a Supply Chain
Management Agreement

On 11 August 2011, Perception Digital BVI, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a supply chain management
agreement (the “Supply Chain Agreement”) with
Teleepoch Limited (“Teleepoch”), pursuant to
which, Perception Digital BVI, together with its
subsidiaries, will act as the exclusive supply
chain partner of Teleepoch for a term of three
years. In consideration of Teleepoch entering
into the Supply Chain Agreement, the Company
entered into an option agreement (the “Option
Agreement”) with Teleepoch, pursuant to which
the Company granted an option to Teleepoch,
entiting Teleepoch to subscribe for originally a
maximum of 15,500,000 ordinary shares of the
Company (individually, the “Upfront Option”),
representing approximately 2.5% of the then
issued share capital of the Company, at an
original exercise price of HK$0.38 per share.
The Upfront Option was vested on 11 November
2011 and is exercisable in whole or in part during
the period from 11 November 2011 to 10 August
2016.
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Share Options under a Supply Chain
Management Agreement (continued)

In addition to the Upfront Option, the Company
also conditionally granted to Teleepoch an option
to subscribe for 0.285 shares of the Company
at the exercise price of HK$0.38 per share (the
“Performance Option”) for every HK$1.0 of net
profit to the Company generated from sales
orders placed by the clients of Teleepoch (the
“Performance Benchmark”), subject to originally
a maximum of 46,750,000 ordinary shares
of the Company, representing approximately
7.5% of the then issued share capital of the
Company. On each anniversary date during the
term of the Supply Chain Agreement, a portion
of the Performance Option shall be vested and
become exercisable. The number of shares
which Teleepoch shall be entitled to subscribe
for pursuant to such vested portion of the
Performance Option shall be determined by
reference to the Performance Benchmark for the
previous year. Subject to such vesting condition,
the Performance Option may be exercised in
whole or in part at any time during the period
from 11 August 2012 to 10 August 2016.

Both the Upfront Option and the Performance
Option (collectively, the “Options”) were granted
under the general and unconditional mandate
granted to the directors of the Company pursuant
to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed
at the annual general meeting held on 6 May
2011 to allot, issue and deal with up to 20% of
the then issued share capital of the Company.
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)
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30. REZEEBREZHE®

Share Options under a Supply Chain b) HEEEEHBETHNE
Management Agreement (continued) PR RE (&)
During the years ended 31 December 2014 and BHE_Z—NHmONFEFER_ZF—=
31 December 2013, as a result of the completion +ZA=1+—BLEE &Ry
of the Open Offer | and the Open Offer Il in ME—ZTE—=F=ZAK=_F—@
March 2013 and January 2014, respectively, the F-AZKARAEE I RARAES
exercise price of the outstanding Options and I HEARITEERENTEE
the number of shares that can be subscribed FAEITEE R ARITEBRER TR
for upon the exercise of the outstanding BHRMEE C2XBERERZ
Options were adjusted (individually, the “Option BEFRIE L AR ([ B — BB AR HE
Adjustment”) pursuant to the terms of the Option ).
Agreement.
The following Options were outstanding under the FA - THBREREBRER
Option Agreement during the year: I ARIETTE
2014 2013
—E-OF -z—=
Weighted
average Weighted
exercise Number of average Number of
price options exercise price options
hnREF 15 N1
TEE BREHKAE 1I0(E B EH A
HK$ HK$
per share per share
sRERT BRET
At 1 January Rn—A—H 0.351 67,472,775 0.38 62,250,000
Option Adjustment AR #E I8 5 34,046,762 5,222,775
At 31 December Rt+t-ZA=+—H 0.233 101,519,537 0.351 67,472,775
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION

ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Annual Report 2014 ==

Share Options under a Supply Chain
Management Agreement (continued)

The exercise prices after the Option Adjustment
during the year ended 31 December 2014 and
exercise periods of the Options outstanding as at
31 December 2014 are as follows:

Number of Options after

the Option Adjustment Exercise price*

30. RELAEBREZFE®

(b) HESEEEHBEETWE
fix #E ()

BHE_Z—WNOF+=-H=1+—~H
HFEE ETEREAERZ
AEERR-_ZT—NFE+=A
=+ —BERETHEEREZTT
fEHAEA T -

Exercise period

BRERELZW
BREHKE TEE" 1THEER

HK$ per share

BB
25,277,957 0.233 11 November 2011 to 10 August 2016
. —ET——F+—A+—HE=Z /\i)\ﬂ-kEl
76,241,580 0.233 11 August 2012 to 10 August 2016"
—E-——FE\A+—BE=-E—~ENATE"

101,519,537

The exercise price after the Option Adjustment
during the year ended 31 December 2013 and
exercise periods of the Options outstanding as at
31 December 2013 are as follows:

\E-F-=#+-A=+-8
LEE ETBREBEEY
TEERR-F-=%+-A
=+ B R (M B 2 1T

FHAGOR -
Number of Options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE THEE" g
HK$ per share
SR
16,800,450 0.351 11 November 2011 to 10 August 2016
—F——&+—fF+—HE=-Z— /\i)\HJFE
50,672,325" 0.351 11 August 2012 to 10 August 2016"
—E——ENAt+—BE_ZEZ—XRENAT+AH"
67,472,775

The exercise price of the Options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues,
or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

A The number of the Performance Options and the
period that the Performance Options become
vested and exercisable are subject to the
achievement of the Performance Benchmark.
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Share Options under a Supply Chain
Management Agreement (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 101,519,537 Options outstanding under
the Option Agreement. The exercise in full
of the outstanding Options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company as
at 31 December 2014, result in the issue of
101,519,537 additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital
of HK$1,015,195 and share premium of
HK$22,638,857 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company had 101,519,537
Options outstanding with an exercise price of
HK$0.233 per share under the Option Agreement,
after taking into account the aforementioned
adjustment, which represented 2.49% of the
Company’s shares in issue at that date.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no equity-

settled share option expense under HKFRS 2 “Share-

based Payment” was recognised by the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group

recognised (i) an equity-settled share option expense
under HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” of HK$38,876
for share options granted in prior periods and vested

during that year, and (ii) a reversal of equity-settled
share option expense under HKFRS 2 of HK$498,896
for options that did not ultimately vest.
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—T—WFE+=—RA=+—H

30. REZEEBREZHE®

(b) HESEEEHBETWE
Bz e ()

RIEBR - AR AIBIKERE
% #% B 101,519,537 1% i & 17
FRERE - BEARRRZE
—mE+=—_A=+—B8BAK
R - W RITEOBAREE
BHAITHE  BEREHTAAA
101,519,537 I ¥8 /1 & B Ak K &8
HNAE AR 1,015,195 7 JT A K2 B (5
i (822,638,857 78 Jr (F1 Bk 3 17
ERA) o

ARSI SRR ERENBE -
Rk LR AQRIRER
B # 1% & B101,519,537 10 &
RIOENERECTEEATR
0.233%7T) - HERE BHAAA]
BETRD 2.49% °

RZZE—NMF+_A=+—HBILFE -
AEEBRERRATAREET BV HERE
RS 255 [ LARR D 2 5 3038 | w9 LA RE 25
HENRBREER -

HE—_Z—=F+ZA=+—HLHF
B AEB()RESSVEREELE
2SR ARR M X 5/IE]) - BBA HIER
LR ZFERBERERRRELS
HHE AR AE R 38,8768 7T ¢ K (i) IR B
ERMBEHRELEFE2H AT &L
55 B A0 i I R R B [ IR R 4 P AR
I 498,896 /8 7T °
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31 December 2014
—E-mE+-A=+—H

31.

(a)

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 60 of the financial
statements.

The Group’s capital reserve originally represented
(i) the difference between the nominal value of
the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over the
nominal value of the shares of Perception Digital
BVI issued in exchange therefor pursuant to a
group reorganisation in 2000; (i) the excess of
the nominal value of the shares and the share
premium account of Perception Digital BVI
acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in
2009, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor; and (iii) the
waiver of amounts due to certain parties related
to certain then beneficial shareholders of the
Company.
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31. RESERVES (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

31. #FE®

(b) Company (b) =27F
Share Share
premium Capital Warrant option  Accumulated
Notes account reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ARER RRE
s RVEER EXGE B B ZithE @it
HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT AT AL AL AT BT
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=%-f-H 43,490,307 10,177,239 7,048,243 3,093,539 (117,197,651) (63,388,323)
Loss and total EMFRRZERY
comprehensive loss a8
for the year - - - - (64,897,112) (64,897,112
Equity-settled share option R iEEEERRIER bt
arrangements 30 - - - (460,020) - (460,020)
Transfer of share option R E(EB R
reserve upon the ERERERR
forfeiture or expiry of
share options = = = (773,990) 773,990 =
Issue of shares Bkiy 29 23,094,750 - - - - 23,094,750
Share issue expenses  [RHEFTER 29 2,553,168) - - - - (2,553,168)
At 31 December 2013  W=ZF-=%1=A
and at 1 January 2014 =+-AR-%
-mE-A-A 64,031,889 10,177,239 7,048,243 1,859,529  (181,320,773)  (98,203,873)
Loss and total EREERZARY
comprehensive loss a8
for the year - - - - (41202325 (41,202,325)
Capital Reduction HIRRA 29(c) - - - - 100,845,000 100,845,000
Issue of shares Bki 29 316,155,450 - - - - 316,155,450
Share issue expenses ROETER 29 (7,997,869) - - - - (7,997,869)
Transfer of share option ~~ BREERH
reserve upon the explry  EEFRIERE
of share options - - - (54,429) 54,429 -
At 31 December 2014 RA=F-E
T-A=t-H 372,189,470 10,177,239 7,048,243 1,805,100  (121,713,669) 269,506,383
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31 December 2014
—E-mE+-A=+—H

31. RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

The Company’s capital reserve represents (i) the
excess of the net asset value of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in
2009, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor; and (i) the
waiver of amounts due to certain parties related
to certain then beneficial shareholders of the
Company.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits/
accumulated losses should the related options expire or
be forfeited after vesting.

The warrant reserve is in connection with the warrants
subscribed which are yet to be exercised as further
detailed in note 29 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related warrants are exercised, or
be transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses
should the related warrants expire.
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Notes to Financial Statements

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 19 December 2014, the Group acquired the entire
equity interest in Gigantic Wisdom Limited and its
operating subsidiary, It RBZTEHEBREE R A,
(collectively, the “Gigantic Group”) from Nimble
Ring Limited, at a total purchase consideration of
RMB65,000,000. The Gigantic Group is engaged in
the car rental services business. Further details of the
transaction are set out in an announcement of the
Company dated 28 November 2014. The acquisition was
made as part of the Group’s strategy to strengthen the
Group’s capabilities in both hardware such as cars and
equipment and software including staff and services with
respect to long-term car rental services. The purchase
consideration for the acquisition was in the form of cash,
with RMB16,250,000 paid at the acquisition date and the
remaining RMB48,750,000 will be paid subsequently to
the end of the reporting period.

The provisional fair values of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the Gigantic Group as at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

32.

R ES e

31 December 2014
—T—WFE+=—RA=+—H

EHE ot

R_ZE—mF+=_F+NAB AEEMH
AABRAR - WHEEERAAIRE
KEMBRARIERBRRAEHEERE
FRRI(ABIBEEER]) 225k -
U BB A A R ¥ 65,000,0008 7T °
BEEBREREHERS - LERS
ZE—SHBEHIN AR AR A
T-—MNFE+—A-+tNBZREHR - &
TZBRBATEBE RO —IH - A
MEAAEBMERERTERAERBEME -
FERERMNSBEREHESES  UWRBIR
IREEEHEHEAKE - ZWBZBE
REUBRSERAIN RKEBEBHE
AR %16,250,0007T © #AEH A R
48,750,000 TN R E BN TFES °

IR A T RAAERE
g2 EEATENT
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31 December 2014
T—ME+-A=+—H

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 32. ¥BE86tm
Provisional
fair value
recognised
on
Note acquisition
U B R
BRAZEE
B 5 ATE
HK$
BT
Property, plant and equipment W - WE R 13 27,216,823
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTAEER 1,072,866
Inventories & 7,143
Trade receivables FE U BR 5K 1,084,749
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEfTFIE - 24 & Hith g Y 508 8,850,457
Trade payables FERTBREX (1,997,208)
Other payables and accruals b &~ 5B R AT SRIE (12,219,368)
Interest-bearing other borrowings Hipzt BEE (14,393,077)
Tax payable FEI B8 (605,358)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AHREEFE2 AT EEE 9,017,027
Provisional goodwill on acquisition TERBRSEE 72,383,420
81,400,447
Satisfied by: ARSI AEE
Cash He 20,350,942
Payable to the seller in connection with the E BRI EERRE - BN TFEH 2
acquisition A 61,049,505
81,400,447
Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition: FUIES|E 2 /FRERE
Cash consideration BeRE 20,350,942
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EENEeRBASEEY (1,072,866)
19,278,076
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Notes to Financial Statements

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The goodwill arising from the above acquisition is
determined on a provisional basis as the Group is in
the process of completing a valuation to assess the fair
values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

The provisional fair values recognised on acquisition
as shown above may be adjusted upon the completion
of the initial accounting for the business combination
during the measurement period, which shall not exceed
one year from the acquisition date.

The directors of the Company consider the acquisition
of the Gigantic Group as an effort to capture the car
rental market opportunities in Mainland China and the
goodwill on acquisition mainly represents the expected
incremental values and potential synergies for the
related development and expansion plans of the Group.

The provisional fair values of the trade receivables and
other receivables of the Gigantic Group at the date
of acquisition approximate to their gross contractual
amounts and the directors of the Company do not
expect any significant acquired receivables to be
uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$376,128
for this acquisition. These cost have been expensed
and are included in general and administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year.

Since the acquisition, the Gigantic Group contributed
HK$664,481 to the Group’s revenue and HK$71,568 to
a reduction in the consolidated loss for the year ended
31 December 2014.

Had the above acquisition taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue of the Group for the year would
have been HK$245,071,461 and the loss of the Group
for the year would have been HK$48,317,753. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisitions been completed
at the beginning of the year, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

32.

R ES e

31 December 2014
—T—WFE+=—RA=+—H

¥Be0twm

P A R B D FE Bt AT A4 A 8Bl 2 P M P
BENMAZERBEZ A FEETHRE
PR E BB EENE EEEETE

bt B R RER A E E A FEIRE
ENFEEBAM Ot (MAER
WEE R MR —FR)RIERHE -

ARREZRR WEBEEEDAIE
BREALIEREMSEE - WER
BIREBRHREREERERKEIRRRE
B MR TR 8.2 5 [FI RUE

EEEENKEE R 2 BKRR L EAM
BURAZEERAFE BESHNEHE
EREE  ARAEFEAMKEZE
WA B TREAREEKE -

AEBRBBERELEZRSIKAB
376,128 BT - WERFHHNAE T84 -
IRAREEGEBHEERTIETRERS -

BRENAR  BEEEREE -
FE+ A=+ HIFEEAEBRKIZES
1 664,481 8 T M4r & EEIR L 71,568
HBIT ©

fitf B URBE R FHIHETT  AEBAFE
2 W A245,071,461 7 T 0 MALE
BAFE 2 EE%A48,317,753 T °
LB EEMIEEHARR  WIEAEER
AERFEVITHWE  BERAJEIRAR
BIEEENIEZ  TUFHRREEY
FEORI o
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31 December 2014
—E-mE+-A=+—H

33.

34.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities.

The Company has given a guarantee to a landlord in
connection with a tenancy agreement entered into by
a subsidiary of the Company during the current year
for the leasing of an office premises. The total future
minimum lease payments under the corresponding
non-cancellable operating lease falling due during the
lease term which will end in May 2017 amounted to
approximately HK$9,923,000 as at 31 December 2014.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) As lessor

The Group leases its motor vehicles and
subleases its office premises under operating
lease arrangements with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to four years while
certain leases can be early terminated by serving
one to two months notice or paying 20% to 30%
of total remaining unpaid leases payments.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its customers and tenant
falling due as follows:

33.

34.

ARG

RBEHAR - AKRELEEAERKA
BfE-

RRARERFER—EFBLER B
B—HOHBEARAICHMBRARTREAR
HME—WAEMEMT L 2HEHZE
MEEHEER - R_T—NFE+=-A
=+—H HEEEHBENTIEEL
EHER BN RRFEEKHEERIBL
¥/59,923,000 7L WHR =T —+
FRAZE -

RedHERH
(@) fEARHER

AEEREEEHELFOHEE
WMAEYE  KEFNEHNT
—EMF - AETHOATERHE—
EMEABAMI AT MR
X e #20% £30% 1% - 7]
REPIE-

RZE—NE+=ZA=+—8 -
AREERBHAEBRE RMEPEIZ
BRI HE A S E R AT HA
1 ZI) HA B9 oK 2R 5 (K FE Y & B

REEWT
Group
5

2014 2013

—Z2-mE —T=F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 6,852,566 54,008
In the second to fifth years, inclusive $_-FZFRHF

(BREERE ME) 14,913 -

6,867,479 54,008
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Notes to Financial Statements

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)
(b) As lessee

The Group leases its office premises and certain
of its office equipment and motor vehicles under
operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten
years while certain leases can be early terminated
by serving fifteen days to six months notice or
paying 15% to 30% of total remaining unpaid
leases payments.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

R ES e

31 December 2014
—E+=-A=+—H

. REHEZRH W

(b) HERHEBERL

AEEREBKEAELHRAER
WMAEMERETHAEZTREU
RAE  KREFAMNEBNT—F
BE+E - ETROTERETE
ENEA BN ST A
R HEH15%E30%7%
AREAH | o

R-_ZE—NME+_A=+—H"
AEERBETNABELCERER
RATEREE BN RRKERE

NFBEWT -
Group
%8

2014 2013

— ik —F=F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 2,710,407 473,244
In the second to fifth years, inclusive S _F&FRF

(BIEERME) 187,451 492,995

2,897,858 966,239

35. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 34(b) above, during the current year, the Group
entered into a subscription agreement (the “Agreement”)
with Prime Elite Ventures Limited (“Prime Elite”). Subject
to the fulfillment of certain closing conditions as stated
in the Agreement, Prime Elite has agreed to allot and
issue, and the Group has agreed to subscribe for
111,111 new ordinary shares of Prime Elite at a total
consideration of US$5 million (approximately HK$39
million).

Upon completion of the transaction, Prime Elite will be
owned as to approximately 10% by the Group. Prime
Elite is primarily engaged in the business of online
car rental services in Mainland China. Further details
of the Agreement are set out in an announcement of
the Company dated 15 October 2014. Up to the date
of approval of these financial statements, the closing
conditions have not yet been fulfilled.

35.

i

B LA BB ES4(o) Frat 2 K& R E L HE
G RAFE  AEEHEGERERER
QEU%QJ'—ﬁMﬁEﬁ%?ﬁW
AR RBE (% W& D
&% Fr 5l 2 58 B 16 4 — & 52
Prime Elite [F] E B2 % & 317 M AN & &[G
BRABHLBEBRAMAE - BREA
5,000,000 %7t (4739,000,000/8 7T ) ©

RBTEHE  NEEBEEHEELH10%
ez o Prime Elite EZ2RHPBIAMKE
MEAREREED - ZHaE2HEzBR
REINAARARA-_ZT—NF+A
THRAZAEF - RULB KRS EIL A&
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31 December 2014
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35. COMMITMENTS (continued)

36.

Annual Report 2014 ==

In addition, the Group’s share of the joint venture’s
own capital commitments, which are not included in the
above, is as follows:

35. AiEw)

Fh

EXREINZAEEBREERT]

FroEa 2 BAAENT ¢

Group
&5
2014 2013
—E-mEF —ET—=F
HK$ HK$
’;%JTE /%71,
Contracted, but not provided for BRI B RFHEEE 3,249,000 =
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEALRS
In addition to the transactions, arrangements and MZETERREMIBD ATFLHR
balances detailed elsewhere in these financial 5 THREHI  NEBEGEEEA

statements, the Group had the following transactions
with related parties during the year:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Group borrowed HK$12 million from a
related company pursuant to a loan agreement
entered into with the related company, in which,
based on information available to the directors
of the Company, a then significant beneficial
shareholder of the Company had then a beneficial
interest in the related company.

The loan from the related company was
unsecured, bore interest at 5% per annum and
was originally repayable on 31 January 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Group early repaid a portion of the loan
amounting to HK$11.6 million and the related
company granted the Group a waiver of the
remaining principal and interest accrued for the
period from July 2013 to July 2014 on the loan
amounting to HK$400,000 and HK$600,000,
respectively.

The other income recognised by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2014 in respect
of the wavier of the remaining principal and
interest accrued for the period from July 2013
to December 2013 on the loan already made
by the Group in the prior year amounted to
HK$700,000.

— M FFIR

TETTIIIRS

(a)

HE-_ZT—=F+=-_A=+—H
IEFE - AEERESE—HEE
YNCIHIVE: )-8 EAD A 2R
AFEEL12,000,0008 7T © MR
TFK RIBEEMESHER $
/NGl %“‘Hqif\a 5 AR B A RZ
MEEARPHEE TSR °

BEARNERSEER - &5
J_qzjilj—v—n-l—/%\&ﬁ}tﬁ/ﬂﬁ\f’;ﬁ
—hF—A=1+—HEE-

REBEE_ZT—NE+_A=1+—
BIEEE  AEECREEER
# 11,600,000 8 ;T2 — &85
FERARIERAEBEREH R -
DABRRZEEE T —=F+
RE-_ZT—NFE+AHMZHT
K& K F B 5 51400,000 7% T M
600,000 JT, ©

HE-_Z—NOMF+=-_A=+—H
IEFE  AEERREAEER
FFEEEEEZZERR_Z
— =S EEap 5 25 — s — = G - T
B 2 8 T A e KA B iR
H{th g A A& 700,000 78 7T ©
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(@)

(continued)

The interest expense recognised by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2013 in respect of
the loan from the related company amounted to
HK$300,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2012,
the Group entered into a sale and leaseback
transaction in respect of a motor vehicle with
a related company, in which the spouse of a
director and the chief executive officer of the
Company at that time, who resigned from such
positions during the prior year, had then a
beneficial interest. Based on information available
to the directors of the Company and for the
purpose of these financial statements, the spouse
was also considered to be a then significant
beneficial shareholder of the Company. Pursuant
to the arrangement, the Group disposed of
a motor vehicle to the related company for a
consideration of HK$260,000 and subsequently
leased back the same motor vehicle from the
related company at a monthly rent of HK$20,000
for the period from 1 June 2012 to 31 May 2014.
The leaseback arrangement was early terminated
on 30 June 2013.

The rental expense recognised by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2013 in respect
of the motor vehicle leaseback transaction
amounted to HK$120,000.

R ES e

31 December 2014
—T—WFE+=—RA=+—H

36. FAEALRF @

(&)

AEEBREBE-_ZT—=51+=_A
=+ HRUEFERREBAEDNR
B FE B &Y F) 2 5 & A& 300,000
BT °

HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—H
IFE  AEEHE-HEERT
R—WAETUHEEERBRR
5 RARER —BEFRITH
RE(HENTFABTRTZSE
BIMEBERNZEBEATD
BEExEZ BEARFES
FRES 0 &R R ot 52 5 0 7% i 3k
mE @ ZBREBHEKRLALARAE
KOWEAERRE BEAER
- & B LA {8 260,000 % 7T
MZEEEARLE —WTE -
HgmzHE@AERRHEER—&
BECR-ZE——FXHA—HZ%E
—E-—NMFERA=Z+—BHEHN
A//20,00087T - BEARSE
REZZT—=FNA=+HENK
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31 December 2014
—E-WFE+=A=+—H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEALRZ @)

(continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of (c) AEBTEEBAENMHNE &
the Group, including amounts paid or payable to EYNSENTFARRIEENS
the Company’s directors, is as follows: LERI N

Group
£H
2014 2013
—2-mF —F—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Short term employee benefits EHREEEA 6,214,017 3,624,667
Post-employment benefits BB 1213 7 65,250 52,500
Equity-settled share option expense,  F&#E 4 &R RER S R 58
net - 14,778

Total compensation paid or payable  AEBEEA B

to key management personnel e e 258 6,279,267 3,691,945
Further details of directors’ emoluments are EEZFMNE—THFBIHRNTE
included in note 8 to the financial statements. HMARMIFES ©
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31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 37. RERETHWHMEIA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEIAR > SEUHE T AEMKREEN
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting N

period are as follows:

Group 3L

MHEE

Financial assets

2014 2013
—E-mE ZE-=%
Available- Available-
Loans for-sale Loans for-sale
and financial and financial
receivables assets Total  receivables assets Total
ERR AHHE ERR e
ERHE HBEE e R8I MBEE ok
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B BT BT BT
Available-for-sale HREERE
investment — 1,260,000 1,260,000 — — —
Trade receivables JEUER R 212,973,874 — 212,973,874 85,489,602 — 85,489,602
Financial assets included %I ATEN A -
in prepayments, e REMER
deposits and other TERBEEE
receivables 84,339,187 — 84,339,187 8,456,419 - 8,456,419
Amount due from a ER—FKEE N
joint venture IR 5,842,767 - 5,842,767 - - -
Pledged bank deposits 2 £ iR TER - - - 6,018,550 - 6,018,550
Cash and cash ReRASEEY
equivalents 8,090,982 - 8,090,982 26,139,149 — 26,139,149
311,246,810 1,260,000 312,506,810 126,103,720 — 126,108,720
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31 December 2014
—E-WFE+=A=+—H

37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (continued)

37. REHNE PN ITE

Group £H
Financial liabilities MHEEE
2014 2013
=Lk —=—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REEK AT ENM S EE
Trade payables FEATBR K 34,801,378 85,274,587
Financial liabilities included in other B EL A FE 5 R IE R FEET X
payables and accruals I EE 75,488,551 7,423,785
Interest-bearing other borrowings TEHMEE 13,697,445 43,630,795
123,987,374 136,329,167
Company NG|
Financial assets HHBEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loans and receivables: BN EWFRIE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU KT B A Rl IE 301,565,525 20,163,795
Amount due from a joint venture JE—R & &R RIFIE 5,728,464 —
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 3,188,006 24,272,684
310,481,995 44,436,479
Financial liabilities BHBEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: RS AT EMM S8 E
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR EPNGIE e 40 =
Other payables and accruals Ho 4t B A 5B M FEET IR - 731,140
Interest-bearing other borrowings ATEEMEE - 43,630,795
40 44,361,935
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of
cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits,
trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets
included in deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, the
current portion of interest-bearing other borrowings,
and balances with a joint venture and subsidiaries
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing other borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing other
borrowings as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair value of an unlisted available-for-sale investment
is determined using market approach based on rate of
return provided by the relevant bank.

Below is a summary of valuation technique used and
the significant unobservable input of the unlisted
available-for-sale investment:

Financial instrument
$@MIA ERE
Unlisted available-for-sale investment
AHEEFLEHRE E=FWE
Save as the purchases and disposals of the available-
for-sale investments of the Group during the year
of approximately HK$1,827,000 and HK$567,000,
respectively, there were no other material movements
in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year
(2013: Nil).
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Valuation technique

Third-party quotation

R ES e

31 December 2014
—T—WFE+=—RA=+—H

MBITENAFERATE
=

BEEEBNNE  TEARBReRAS
HFEY SEBRTER - BRER
JERMBRFR ~ 5t AR & R E AR EUGRIA R
MIEEE - st AHEMENRIEREF K
ENMBAE  FFEEMEERREY
ARE—EEELERKE QR ZER
RERATH  HRFTAZAFER
HEEEERS -

B ER A BN ATFEAERERS
(BRI ER SN T EHEERE
MIAMEOSE - AT ERBRE
AR ATE -

AEEMEEERFERGN  EERR
MFEHEBBEBARYBEUNT AN B A
FIEFEFERRRB S REMTEIE
A M AFE - R —OF+—
A=+—BR-_ZE—=F+-A=+—
H A"&EEXAFHRTEEMEENTE
R E BT TEK -

AHEEFRLETRENRFELEAT
BAUERBERRITAIRHE C MBRE

E o

THIAG LT RA A2
£ EREETABRRBOME -

Significant
unobservable input

ERZTIBEYE

Third-party pricing information
E=FEEBEH

BRAEBERFRABERLEESNOA
1,827,000 Jt & #9567,000 7% T 2 A]
HEEREN  FAE=RAFEZF
EMEEMBEREEH (T —=F : &) -
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

Group

As at 31 December 2014

38. WHTAMNAFERLQFE

8 &% (=)

AFEER

R
KAFEHBOEE -

£E=

TRERAESECRIAZAFEFE

R—E—NF+=-_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

BT 5ZEG B AFE

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

WERBM S EXTBE BEAFUTEE

HRE w\ABE \ARE
(B—%) (£=8) (E=#) wE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT

Available-for-sale AHHERE
investment:

Unlisted debt investment  3E LM EKILE - — 1,260,000 1,260,000

The Group and the Company did not have any financial
assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2013.

Liabilities measured at fair value

The Group and the Company did not have any financial
liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December

2014 and 31 December 2013.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and

financial liabilities (2013: Nil).
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Notes to Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing other borrowings, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance/
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables, financial assets included in deposits
and other receivables, an amount due from a joint
venture, an available-for-sale investment, trade payables
and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,
the Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to the interest-bearing other borrowings of the
Group with fixed interest rates. The Group currently
does not have any fair value interest rate hedging
policy. However, management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group is also exposed
to the risk of changes in market interest rate related to
the Group’s available-for-sale investment with a floating
interest rate. The Group did not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its interest rate risk. Further
details of the available-for-sale investment are set out in
note 22 to the financial statements.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures.
Such exposures primarily arise from revenue and other
income generated, and cost and expenses incurred by
operating units in currencies other than the Group’s
operating units’ functional currencies. For the Group’s
operating units’ that have the United States dollar
as their functional currency, their foreign currency
transactions during the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013, and the units’ monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the
end of the reporting period were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. As the Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”)
is pegged to the United States dollar (“US$”) within a
narrow band, the Group does not expect any significant
movements in the US$/HKS$ exchange rate. Accordingly,
management considers that the Group’s foreign
currency risk exposure is not significant.

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit with recognised
and creditworthy third parties or with customers
with long term/strategic relationships. The receivable
balances of the Group are monitored by senior
management on an ongoing basis. Since the Group
primarily trades on credit with recognised and
creditworthy third parties or with customers with
long term/strategic relationships, save as disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, there is normally
no requirement for collateral.
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Notes to Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which
comprise trade receivables, financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables, an amount due from a
joint venture, an available-for-sale investment, pledged
bank deposits, and cash and cash equivalents, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Company is also exposed to credit risk
through the granting of a financial guarantee, further
details of which are disclosed in note 33 to the financial
statements.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry
sector. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentrations of credit risk as 62.2%
(2013: 32.5%) and 92.7% (2013: 89.5%) of the Group’s
trade receivables and other receivables were due from
the Group’s largest customer/debtors and five largest
customers/debtors, respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risks to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities
and financial assets and projected cash flows from
operations. The Group’s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of interest-bearing other borrowings.
The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and cash flows from operations to meet its
liquidity requirements.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

39.

(%)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
Pt

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

REE S @R (E)

BEEREERBRRBER

AT &I ARERBEPRBESDHR

AT 55 BE 2B

Group £H
2014
—E-mE
On demand
or less than 1to
1 year 5 years Total
EEREER
DPR—F —ZRHEF BEr
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Trade payables FE - BRFK 34,801,378 - 34,801,378
Financial liabilities included %Il A £ 1 i 1~ 5% 78 Kz
in other payables and FEET RUIE R B 7
accruals =R 77,621,274 - 77,621,274
Interest-bearing other ATEEMEE
borrowings 9,371,579 5,532,202 14,903,781
121,794,231 5,532,202 127,326,433
2013
—ZE-=F
On demand
or less than 1 to
1 year 5 years Total
DR—F —Z=hHF st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Trade payables FE 1 BR 5K 85,274,587 - 85,274,587
Financial liabilities included  %IJ A E i & 1< 3008 K
in other payables and H it fEFT N IEM
accruals =N 7,423,785 = 7,423,785
Interest-bearing other sSTEREMEE (ME)
borrowings (note) 31,330,795 12,950,000 44,280,795
124,029,167 12,950,000 136,979,167
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. KEKREEBEFERBK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) €
Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRR (E)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities LT EAI AR AR BRERRBIES LK
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the RN RD TR & ERHAR

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

]
i

Company

2014
—E-ImF
No fixed
terms of
repayment
I & & E
BRFH
HK$

BT

Amounts due to subsidiaries  JEHHI B A FFIE 40
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. MKREKEEHERBEK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRR (E)
Company (continued) ATR(E)
2013
On demand
or less than 1 to
1 year 5 years Tota
FEEREES
LR—F —ERF st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial liabilities included 1) A - & < 708 K&
in other payables and H b fEET ZUIE R
accruals HaE 731,140 - 731,140
Interest-bearing other TR EMER (M)
borrowings (note) 31,330,795 12,950,000 44,280,795
32,061,935 12,950,000 45,011,935
Note: MIE -
Included in the above interest-bearing other borrowings of PR AREBRARANGEEMBERT

the Group and the Company was a term loan with a carrying
amount as at 31 December 2013 of HK$31,330,795, the loan
agreement of which contained a repayment on-demand clause

giving the lender of the loan the

time on or after 18 January 2014. Accordingly, for the purpose
of the above maturity profile, the contractual undiscounted
payments of such loan of the Group and the Company in the
amount of HK$31,330,795 were classified as “on demand”
as at 31 December 2013. Such other borrowing was settled

during the current year.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

B 7% S 2 B

31 December 2014
—E-mNE+ZA=+—H

39. MBEREZEBZERBEE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (48)
Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRR (8
In accordance with the terms of the interest-bearing RS AERERETIETNET S HpE
other borrowing which contained a repayment Bz R-E2—=F+_A=+—H
on-demand clause, the maturity profile of the loan RIE A 4R 3T IR FE MR ([ &5k
as at 31 December 2013, based on the contractual SRR ED T ZEE D B4k
undiscounted payments and ignoring the effect of any N
repayment on-demand clause, is as follows:
Group £H
Less than
1 year 1 to 5 years Total
DPR—F —ERE HEt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+-F=+—H 2,939,836 40,120,000 43,059,836
Company NG
Less than
1 year 1 to 5 years Total
DPR—F —ZREF Hat
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2013 RZZ—=F+-A=+—H 2,939,836 40,120,000 43,059,836

Perception Digital Holdings Limited 4] % (5% R E R A 5

197



Notes to Financial Statements

B R R MY AL

31 December 2014
—E-mE+-A=+—H

39.

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 20 March 2015.
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A summary of the Group’s results for the last five financial
years and the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2014, 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2010 as extracted =N
from the published audited financial statements is set out
below. The summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

Financial Summary

MR R

TXHINAEERBERETRFEENFRER
AEBR_ZT—NE - _T—=F - _F—_
T FERZZE-ZEF+-_H=+—H
MEEMNBBNME  AEEHLHEEET
BISERVBRE - AR EL MBS ERM
BHwKRE—F 7 °

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t-HLEFE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-ImF —T—=F —E—CF —T——F —T-FF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
B BT BT BT BT
RESULTS £
REVENUE Urgs 222,255,924 200,022,317 340,869,541 533,406,703 497,683,452
Cost of sales HEKA (205,345,437) (179,396,792) (315,323,262) (486,958,388) (423,252,233)
Gross profit £ 16,910,487 20,625,525 25,546,279 46,448,315 74,431,219
Other income and gains EmA K& 8,008,214 1,067,008 1,358,878 8,748,028 673,347
Research and development R RFAEKA
costs (2,618,224)  (5,125,959)  (23,678,720)  (8,321,705)  (7,357,953)
Selling and distribution $HE R HR
expenses (14,613,513)  (12,729,657)  (16,188,543)  (13,923,258)  (10,338,614)
General and administrative —RRITHER
expenses (25,413,974)  (19,385,288)  (39,304,434)  (45,467,014)  (27,776,524)
Other expenses, net Hi 58 (26,033,043)  (42,893,891)  (37,187,744) (7,435,420 (144,036)
Finance costs BEKAE (118,608)  (6,853,092)  (8,556,469)  (5,434,911) (2,591,923
Share of loss of a joint venture EE—RAL N EERE (2,154,466) = = = =
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX  Br#tanafl,/ (#518) (46,033,127)  (65,295,354)  (98,010,753)  (25,385,965) 26,895,516
Income tax credit/(expense) ERER/ (X)) (3,551,925) 64,217 1,364,311 3,397,094 (3,871,559
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE FREF/ (B8)
YEAR (49,585,052)  (65,231,137)  (96,646,442)  (21,988,871) 23,023,957
Attributable to: T& A el
Owners of the parent (SUNSIET PN (49,585,052)  (65,231,137)  (96,646,442)  (21,988,871) 23,023,957
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Financial Summary

B EE

As at 31 December

R+=-A=+-H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-MEF —T—=F —T——F —T——F —T-%F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SEREE

TOTAL ASSETS LELE 431,537,686 154,972,453  252,744106 375,347,282 315,623,114
TOTAL LIABILITIES BfE0E (129,596,547) (141,292,990) (243,950,572) (276,729,895) (196,026,695)
301,941,139 13,679,463 8,793,534 98,617,387 119,596,419
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